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Vision and Mission

To be the leading state organization in the Asian region for life skill development of the
youth.

ourission g

To produce knowledgeable, competent, skillful and energetic youth enriched with resilience
and courage to fill the skill gap of the future professionals to contribute towards varied and
resourceful youth development in Sri Lanka.
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To develop the life skills and personality of both male and female youth

To provide vocational education, vocational training and the referral to employment
opportunities

To organize the activities related to the recruitment of male and female cadets for the
Life Skill Course of the National Youth Corps and make recruitments thereto

To map out the Life Skill Course appropriately and see to its implementation
To conduct the Information Technology Course and the English Language Course

To direct the male and female youth completing the Life Skill Course to vocational
training and arrange for their job placements

To provide life skill training to external parties in addition to the internal male and
female cadets

To see to the conduct of the hotel school and the courses of training in relation
thereto

To make a contribution towards the improvement of both aesthetic skills and sports
skills of the male and female youth

To ensure the proper implementation of the management of physical resources in the
organization



The competitive nature of the existing education
system does not play an effective role in
developing the life skills of young people. In such
a background, the Youth Corps is in the process
of implementing what it calls the development of
life skills of the community of youth as its prime
task.

The first three months of this program is
earmarked for life skills training and the next
trimester is reserved for practical training in the
subjects of Information Technology and English
Language. It is also especially noteworthy in
this regard to create skilfulness in computer
technology as well as the ability to handle the
English language among young people. Centers
of 55 youth corps across the island undertake
non-stop training courses to improve these life
skills, and the participants of the courses also
have the opportunity to acquire an internationally
recognized City & Guild certification. The cadets
who successfully complete this course will be
referred to a recognized professional training
institute in the state or private sector for
appropriate training according to their skills and
interests. A scholarship will also be awarded

to young people who show special talents in

the basic course to pursue a vocational training
course worth up to one hundred thousand
rupees. The National Youth Corps also provides
guidance and facilities for vocational training to
all of its community of young cadets who have
gone on to complete the basic courses.

In addition to this, the Youth Corps has been able
to positioning itself by developing the strategy of
vocational education and job training according
to the needs of the youth and creating self-
operational vocational training institutes such as
the Dambulla Hotel Training School in conjunction
with the third-party vocational training system.
The young cadets undergoing training at the hotel
training school will be directed to job training

in the leading hotels in the island and will be
employed in the same work places. In addition to
these courses, a bungalow caretaker course was
also initiated by the hotel training school in 2022
as a new introduction.

Opening up a new path in the field of vocational
training, the Youth Corps was also able to launch
several job-oriented vocational training courses
jointly with public and private sector institutions
in the year 2022. It was also able to implement
foreign language (Chinese, Japanese, Korean)

training programs in 14 training centers
and undertake training courses to train
and build up young men and women
with ability in singing, playing music
and dancing as professional artists in
the Yakkala Aesthetic Institute and to
introduce them to the related field. It
was also a great impetus on the part of
the Youth Corps that it was in a position
to initiate training courses in volleyball,
netball, archery and air rifle shooting at
the Divulapitiya Sports Training Center
towards achieving a comprehensive
youth development drive.

In addition to these training programs,
the Youth Corps also conducts
leadership and personality development
training programs for school student
leaders and skill-based life skills
training programs for other public

and private sector staffs, having them
designed according to the needs of
each institution. Also, the interim
budget of 2022 that stressed the need
of "special vocational training program
implemented with the aim of facilitating
new jobs based on skills" was
conducted by the National Youth Corps
as an accelerated efficient and effective
program.

Accordingly, the National Youth Corps
expresses its great pleasure that it
was able to carry out a viably lasting
mission for the development of the
youth in the country despite various
difficulties encountered in the past few
years. | would like to extend my thanks
and gratitude to the Secretary of the
Ministry of Youth and Sports including
all members of the Ministry's staff

and the Board of Directors and the
entire staff of the Youth Corps for their
support and sacrifices.

| fervently hope that the year 2023 will
be an auspicious year that gives us
the continued strength and courage

to lead the Sri Lankan youthfulness

to a prosperous future with further
empowerment.

Chairman - Youth Corps
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1 Introduction

The Youth Corps is working as the only and foremost government agency for building life
skills in the community of youth in tune with the social and youth needs. The National Youth
Corps which has identified its ongoing objective as the bridging up of the skill gap in the
community of youth, is committed to implementing life skills training programs as a youth
development strategy to fill that hiatus. In addition, the youth will be given the opportunity
to learn the necessary aptitudes associated with it, such as learning English language

and IT skills, and they will also be directed to vocational education and job training whilst
efforts are made to nurture the youth with new attitudes and socially integrate them as a
productive economic human.

11. Legal Foundation

The Act of Parliament, No. 21 of 2002
The Youth Corps Regulations, No. 01 of 2003

1.2 Organization of the Youth Corps Council

The organization of the Youth Corps consists of four tiers.
a. The Youth Corps Council

b The Youth Corps Headquarters

(o The Provincial Headquarters
d

The Network of Training Centers




a. The Youth Corps Gouncil

The Youth Corps Council is appointed by the Minister in charge of the Subject as provided
for by the Act of Parliament, No. 21 of 2002. Accordingly, the Youth Corps is governed by a
council of five members.

Memhers of the Youth Gorps Council for the year 2022

- Col. Dharshana Ratnayake, RWP, RSP
Chairman - National Youth Corps

« Mr. Chandraratna Pallegama
Member

Additional Secretary
(Administration and Procurement),
Ministry of Youth and Sports

« Mrs. WM.D.T. Wickremasinghe
Member

Additional Secretary
(Administration and Procurement),
Ministry of Youth and Sports

(Officer succeeding
Mr. Chandraratna Pallegama)

» Dr. Chaminda Abeysingha

Member
Senior Lecturer, University of Kelaniya

« Mr. M.R\V.R. Meepura
Member

Treasury Representative Additional Director
General (Acting)

» Mrs. D.A. Niharepola

Member
Director, Acting (Ministry of Finance)

(Officer succeeding
Mr. M.R.V.R. Meepura)

« Mr. Prasanna Chandrajith

Member

Additional Secretary,
Ministry of Youth and Sports

(Officer succeeding
Mrs. W.M.D.T. Wickremasinghe)

- Mr. Deepal Siribaddana

Member
Additional Secretary,
Ministry of Youth and Sports

(Officer succeeding
Mr. Prasanna Chandrajith

« Dr. Mrs. E.A.D. Anusha Edirisingha

Member
Senior Lecturer, University of Kelaniya

» Mr. Tanesh Bernard Dias

Member
Head of Human Resources
Board of Control for Cricket
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h. Youth Corps Headquarters

4 GCHAIRMAN / DIRECTOR

[ Audit Division

. Nisantha Pushpakumara, AAL
Additional Director
(Administration & Finance)

Mr. Saman Kulasuriya
Additional Director
(Training & Development)

ﬁ}.‘ b |
i_s,
o

Human Resources Division

Miss M. Kamani
Assistant Director
(Administration)

Miss. A. M. A. J. Abeysinghe

Assistant Director (Training)
Media Division

Transport Division

Procurement Division

Mrs. P.H. Jayamini

Assistant Director (Finance)

Mrs. D.M.T.M Ranasinghe

Assistant Director (Operations)
{

% ’ '«;.j.gy ’

Mrs. J.L.U.P. Gunawardena Mrs. Chandani Karavita
Assistant Director (Development) Legal Officer/Board Secretary

R

Col.L.P Mendis, Head of Planning

Construction Division

Stores Division
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c. Provincial Directors
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d. Network of Training Centers

. | Province Center Address Tel. No.

c

(72

1 Western Katunayake Dhammaloka Mawatha, Walana, 0112-260 020
Katunayake.

2 Attanagalla Wathupitiwala, Attanagalla, 033-228 2232
Nittambuwa.

3 Divulapitiya Walpita, Divulapitiya. 033-227 2875

4 Bulathsinhala National Youth Corps Training 034-228 2322
Center, Bulathsinhala.

5 Yakkala Werellawatta, Yakkala. 033-223 3534

6 |Central Gampola Nawalapitiya Road, Kudamake, 081-207 8177
Gampola.

7 Naula Arangala, Naula. 066-224 6204

8 Nuwara Eliya Meepilimana, Ambewela, Nuwara 052-353 6332
Eliya.

9 Walapane Harasbedda, Walapane. 052-205 0010

10 Senkadagala Sirimaluyana, Augustawatta, Kandy. |081-238 9134

n Yatinuwara Yatinuwara, Pilapitiya, Muruthalawa. | 081-241 0026

12 | Southern Galle Wekunugoda, Bope, Galle. 091-223 3182

13 Neluwa Piyasena Gamage Building Complex, | 091-309 8911
Ambalgedara, Neluwa.

14 Akuressa Maramba, Akuressa. 041-313 1216

15 Weeraketiya Naigala, Hakuruela, Weeraketiya. 047-225 7143

16 Suriyawewa Central College Road, Suriyawewa. | 047-228 8169

17 Akmeemana Kurunduwatta, Akmeemana. 091-312 1736

18 Dikwella Urugamuwa, Dikwella. 041-225 5055

19 Lunugamvehera Lunugamvehera, Thalawa. 047-2239292

20 Weerawila National Youth Corps Training 047-3128444
Center, Weerawila.

21 | North Western | Kuliyapitiya Degammedda, Wewagama, 037-228 3680
Kuliyapitiya.

22 Wariyapola Courts Road, Wariyapola. 037-2268375

23 Mawathagama Denvore Watta, Mawathagama. 037-2298668

24 Panduwasnuwara Nugawela Junction, 037-2291803
Panduwasnuwara.

25 Dodangaslanda Alakolamada, Maduragoda, 037-225 2655
Dodangaslanda.

26 Nattandiya Sagaragama, Nattandiya. 032-2050815

27 Wennappuwa Ranaviru Kamalasiri Mawatha, 031- 227 7199
Bolana, Waikkala.

28 Alawwa Waligamuwa, Alawwa. 037-2067885
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29 | North Central Kekirawa Mahaweli Side, Olukaranda, 025 -226 3297
Kekirawa.

30 Kalawewa Galnewa, Bulnewa, Kalawewa. 025 -226 9946

31 Anuradhapura Mapaladikulam, Anuradhapura 025- 385 2809

32 Medirigiriya Kavudulugama, Medirigiriya. 027- 205 0477

33 Galenbindunuwewa | Yakkala, Galenbindunuwewa. 025- 225 8355

34 |Uva Bandarawela Bindunuwewa, Bandarawela. 057-222 2214

35 Mahiyanganaya Mapakada, Mahiyanganaya. 055-225 7118

36 Thanamalwila Bodagama, Mahiyanganaya. 047-322 0529

37 Monaragala Weliyaya, Monaragala. 055-205 5741

38 Wellawaya Yalabowawatta, Wellawaya. 055-2274157

39 Siyambalanduwa 19th Mile, Pothuvil Road, 0703538292
Siyambalanduwa.

40 | Sabaragamuwa | Nivithigala Ambalandeniya, Watapotha Road, 045-227 9970
Nivithigala.

41 Galigamuwa Asideniya, Galigamuwa Town, 035-228 2993
Galigamuwa.

42 Embilipitiya ‘Gamuda’ Idama, Yodhagama, 047-226 2399
Embilipitiya.

43 Kegalle Gangodawatta, Kegalle. 035- 222 3260

44 Balangoda Batugammana, Balangoda. 045- 312 9898

45 Dehiovita Kanangama, Dehiovita. 036-226 7671

46 |Eastern Ampara Education Administration Building, |063-222 4810
Uhana Road, Ampara.

47 Seruwawila Seruwawila, Alioluwa, Serunuwara. |026-454 9439

48 Gomarankadawala [ Wilpanakulama, Gomarankadawala. | 026-454 9428

49 Kuchchaweli Salapearu, Kuchchaweli. 026-222 8709

50 Trincomalee Circular Road, Saddhapura, 026-454 9432
Trincomalee.

51 Dehiattakandiya Lihiniyagama, Damanawela, 027-205 6723
Dehiattakandiya.

52 Valachchena 18th Post, Gandhinagar Road, 065-312 1085
Kalkuda, Valachchena.

53 | Northern Mullaitivu Wattuwakkal, Mullaitivu. 021 -229 0428

54 Mannar Thaleimannar Road, Mannar. 023- 225 1917

55 Vauniya Irattaperiyakulam, Vauniya. 024- 205 4558

Special Training Centers

Srl. No. |Province |Center Address Tel. No.
1 Central [Hotel Training School Inamaluwa, 066-2286177
Dambulla. 070-2587411
Adventure based Training Center Naula 066-224 6204
2 Southern | Hotel Training School (Proposed) Kataragama -
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Members of the Audit and Management Committee

1st Quarter 2022
1. Mrs. D.A. Niharepola - Director (Actg.) - National planning Department
- Committee Chairperson
2. Mrs. W.M.D.T. Wickremasinghe - Additional Secretary (Administration & Procurement)
- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Member
3. Dr. Chaminda Abeysingha - Member of the Youth Corps Council
- Member
4, Mr. H. D. Jude Perera - Audit Superintendent -
Government Audit Office - Observer
5. Mr. W.P.D.M.J. Perera - Chief Internal Auditor
- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Observer
2nd Quarter 2022
1. Mrs. D.A. Niharepola - Director (Actg.) - National planning Department

- Committee Chairperson

2. Mrs. W.M.D.T. Wickremasinghe - Additional Secretary
(Administration & Procurement)
- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Member

3. Dr. Chaminda Abeysingha - Member of the Youth Corps Council
- Member
4, Mr. H. D. Jude Perera - Audit Superintendent
- Government Audit Office - Observer
5. Mr. W.P.D.M.J. Perera - Chief Internal Auditor
- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Observer
drd Quarter 2022
1. Mrs. D.A. Niharepola - Director (Actg.) - National planning Department -
Committee Chairperson
2. Mr. K. Chandrajith - Additional Secretary (Development)
- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Member
3. Dr. Chaminda Abeysingha - Member of the Youth Corps Council -
Member
4. Mr. H. D. Jude Perera - Audit Superintendent - Government Audit Office -
Observer
5. Mr. W.P.D.M_J. Perera - Chief Internal Auditor
- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Observer
4th Quarter 2022
1. Mrs. D.A. Niharepola - Director (Actg.) - National planning Department
- Committee Chairperson
2. Mr. D.C. Siribaddana - Additional Secretary (Development)
- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Member
3. Dr. Chaminda Abeysingha - Member of the Youth Corps Council
- Member
4, Mr. H. D. Jude Perera - Audit Superintendent
- Government Audit Office - Observer
5. Mr. W.P.D.M.J. Perera - Chief Internal Auditor

- Ministry of Youth and Sports - Observer
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2.Training and Development Activities

It is a matter to be happy that the Youth Corps has been able to accomplish an excellent
mission towards the discipline, leadership and personality development of the community of
youth in Sri Lanka over the past twenty years.

The primary role of the National Youth Corps is :
a. Youth development; and
b. Vocational education and job-oriented training.

In the exercise of carrying out the task of youth development, the Youth Corps has chosen
life skill development in the youth as its primary strategy. Accordingly, a three-month life
skills training course is in operation across the 55 youth corps training centers in the island.
The course awardees will also have the opportunity to obtain an internationally recognized
City & Guild certification by virtue of this course. Also, a three-month Advanced Certificate
Course is being conducted by the Youth Corps in collaboration with an institution recognized
by the University Grants Commission in order to develop the IT skills and English language
skills needed to empower the youth. Any young man or woman between the ages of 16

and 29 can participate in this course and the trainees who are enrolled in the course are
called “Youth Cadets”. The aim of the concept of youth cadet is to produce a citizen with high
qualities such as national discipline, patriotism, commitment to national development and
pride in work.

Following activities can be identified as other youth programs undertaken by the Youth
Corps:

a. Implementation of foreign language training programs in 14 training centers. (Chinese,
Japanese and Korean languages are operational);

b. Conducting training courses to groom young people with singing, music playing and
dancing abilities as professional artists at Yakkala Aesthetic Training Institute and
introducing them to the related field,;

c. Commencement of the training courses in volleyball, netball
, archery and air rifle shooting at Divulapitiya Sports Training Center.
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The fact that these training courses are designed for the development of professional skills
based on life skills is also a great help for a complete process of youth development.

In addition to these training programs, the Youth Corps also conducts leadership and
personality development training programs for students of schools and talent-based life
skills training programs for other public and private sector staffs designed according to the
needs of the respective institutions.

Even though the Youth Corps is not supposed to be a traditional vocational training
institution, it performs a unique task in the field of vocational education and job training. The
National Youth Corps is in possession of an ability that no other vocational training institute
has. That is to say, the National Youth Corps is capable of providing vocational training to
the youth by coordinating any public or private vocational training institute in the island.
Accordingly, the young cadets who successfully complete the life skills training are directed
to a professional training that matches their ability and interest pursuant to a proper and
accurate socio-metric testing method. Young cadets who excel especially in the Life Skills
Training Course will be given the opportunity to pursue any vocational training course worth
up to one hundred thousand of rupees.

Opening up a new path in the field of vocational training, the Corpse was also able to jointly
launch several job-oriented vocational training courses during the year 2022 with the
following institutions.

Apparel Industry Courses - Sri Lanka Textile Garments Institute
Caregiver Course - Lanka Hospitals Private Limited

Heavy Equipment and Machinery Course - RSM Institute, Galle
Diamond Cutting Course - Diamond Cutters Institute

[ X N J \
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It is also a remarkable fact that the young cadets have directly entered the professional
training field by virtue of the courses operational in the hotel sector through the hotel
training school situated in Inamaluwa, Dambulla, which is under the purview of the National
Youth Corps. The young cadets undergoing training at the hotel training school will be
directed to job training for leading hotels in the island and asked to be employed there.

In addition to these courses, a bungalow caretaker course was also started by the hotel
training school during the year 2022 as a new introduction.

Currently, pre-school training courses based on life skills have also been commenced for
pre-school wardens and the pilot program in that regard was implemented at Madirigiriya
Training Centre.

Furthermore, the interim budget of 2022 proposed program, "special vocational training
program implemented with the aim of facilitating new jobs based on skills" was conducted
by the National Youth Corps as an accelerated efficient and effective program. The following
courses were implemented in conjunction with recognized professional training institutes
to cater to the demand of the job market, opening up easy avenues to employment
opportunities.

1. Heavy Vehicle, Equipment & Machinery 9. CISCO Certified Network

Course Associate (CCNA)
(Backhoe (JCB) loader & Excavator 10.  Caregiver Course
Operator)

n. Marine Welder / Fitter Course

2. House Keeping Course 12 Certificate in Welding

3. Front Office Course Technology (4G)

4, Food & Beverage Serving Course 13. Lathe Machine Operation

5. Pastry & Bakery Course 14.  Aluminum Fabricating

6. International Cookery Course Technician

7. Steward Course 15.  Barrister

8. Advanced Certificate in Cyber Security 16.  Facility Management Assistant

Course
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Apart from this, as a leadership and personality development exercise, adventure-based
training is one of the components of youth development process of the National Youth Corps,
and these programs are conducted at the center of outbound adventure-based training at
Naula as its pivotal point. Any public or private institution in the island can avail the service
through this center to add to the enhancement of the efficiency of their staff members and
to groom them with leadership and personality qualities. Also, all the training centers in the
island currently have the facility areas for outbound adventure-based endurance training,
commencing from the year 2022.
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3 Progress Review - 2022

3.1Training and development programs (Young Male and Female Cadets)

3.1.1Training programs

* Among the trainees who followed the life skills training course in the year 2022, the

Program Progress
Expected Number of | Number Participated
Trainees

Life Skill Training Course 10000 7432

Advanced Certificate Course in Information [ 4500 4569

Technology and English Language

Referrals to Vocational Training 1150 *992

number of trainees referred to vocational training as at 31.12.2022 is 992. As the vocational
training courses relating to the respective vocational fields selected by some of the trainees
were started in the year 2023, they have been directed to vocational training during that
year. The number of trainees involved thereiin were 116. Accordingly, the actual number of
trainees referred to vocational training in relation to the year 2022 is 1108.

10000 ® Projected Trainees  ®m Number Participated

Life Skills Training Course Certificate CourseinT&  Referrals to Vocational Training
English Language

n the action plan, two batches of trainees were planned to be recruited for the year 2022,

but the expected targets were not to be achieved due to the economic and fuel crisis in the
country at the time of recruitment. Accordingly, the re-recruitment was started in October
2022 and the third batch made its way in. As such, 03 courses have been arranged to have
taken place for this year.
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3.1.2 Summary of the Gertificate Courses in )
Information Communication Technology and English Language

Advanced Certificate Course in Batch - 01 |Registered 2444
Information Communication Technology Number gone on to 1720
complete the Course
Batch - 02 |Registered 2035
Number gone on to 1796
complete the Course
Advanced Certificate Course in English Batch - 01 |Registered 2445
Language Number gone on to 1739
complete the Course
Batch - 02 |Registered 2044
Number gone on to 1723
complete the Course

3.1.3 Development Programs

Program Projected Progress
No. of No. of No. of No. of
Programs | Participants | Programs [ Participants
Narcotic Drug Prevention Program 110 10000 153 3908
Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) 153 3788
Prevention Program
Non Communicable Diseases (NCD) 152 3835
Prevention Program
Essay Competition 154 3857
Debate Contest 149 3915
Quiz Contest 153 3901
Disaster Management Program 152 3907
Sport Meet (Center level) 9 3385
Arts Festival - (National Level) - 01 1300 01 1500
Paurushabimani)
* Passing out Ceremony (National / [110 3000 54 4082
Center level)

* Passing out ceremonies were arranged for the first and second batches at the same time,
and the passing out ceremonies for the third batch are expected to be held in the year 2023.
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DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
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3.2 Vocational Training Courses conducted hy
the Youth Corps

3.2.1 Hotel School - Dambulla

Batch |
Level | Registered training (Months)
01 Pastry & Bakery 4 25 23 6
02 International Cookery 4 39 36 6
03 Food & Beverages Serving 4 39 32 6
04 Front Office Receptionist 4 3 3 6
05 House Keeping 3 21 19 3
Total 127 13
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Batch Il
Srl. |Course NVQ No. No. gone onto | Course
No. Level Registered | complete the | Duration
training (Months)
01 Pastry & Bakery 4 47 39 6
02 International Cookery 4 85 69 6
03 Food & Beverages Serving 4 52 36 6
04 Front Office Receptionist 4 19 10 6
05 House Keeping 3 41 37 3
06 Bungalow Keeper 3 25 25 3
Total 269 216
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3.2.2 Resthetic Training Institute - Yakkala

Srl. Course NVQ Course Year |Batch No. Remarks
No. Level |Duration Registered
(Months)

1. Drumming 6 Two Years | 2022 |Batchl 23 Second Semester
and starts in the month
Dancing of April 2023

2. Music 4 One Year 2022 |Batch|l 07 Second Semester

starts in the month
of April 2023
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3.3 Joh Oriented Training Courses — 2022
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Partnering
Srl. No. |Course institute/ No. of Trainees |Remarks
organization
Backhoe Loader/ RSM Heavy 45 Job oriented
1 Excavator Vehicle and training
Operator Training Heavy Machinery
(NVQ Level 3) Training School
2 Caregiver (NVQ Lanka Hospitals 21 Job oriented
Level 3) Corporation PLC training
Machine Operator | Classic Fashion 409 24 persons
3 Apparel, Jordan have been on
overseas job
placements.
Diamond cutting Diamond Cutters 56 Will be placed
4 professionals Limited on jobs after
training.
5 Pre School - Medirigiriya 20 -
Medirigiriya Training Center
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3.4 Adventure-hased Outhound Training

External Trainees,
437

s

Life Skills and Leadership Training Programs -
External Institutions

Program Projected Progress

No. of Participants | No. of Participants
Leadership Training Program for School 2,500 80,77
Students
Training Program for Staffs of Public and 50,000 43119
Private Sector

W Target ™ Progress
80,771

School Prefects

50000

43119

Gov and Privae sec personel

3.6 Capacity Development Programs - Staff

Srl. No.

Program

Projected

Progress

01

Scholarship Grants

10 (Participants)

10 (Participants)

02

Training of Trainers

(In view of the covid 19 pandemic
situation, training programs
were conducted online during
the first half of the year and
on-site training programs were
conducted during the latter part
of the period.)

2500 Human Days

2958 Human Days

03

Training - Other

05 (Programs)

04 (Programs)
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3.1 Skill-hased Vocational Training to create new job opportunities

(Interim budget)
Srl. | Course Institute NVQ Level / | Projected Total
No. Certificate Trainees
1 Backhoe Loader / RSM Heavy Vehicle NVQ L3 250 329
Excavator Operator and Heavy Machinery
Training Training School
2 House Keeping Hotel Training School [NVQ L3 50 244
3 |Front Office of Youth Corps NVQ L4 50
Food and Beverages 30
Serving
5 Pastry and & Bakery 50
6 International Cookery 50
7 Marine Welder Fitter CINEC Campus (pvt) Certificate 100 120
8 Lathe Machine Operation Ltd Certificate 25 24
9 Aluminum Fabricating Certificate 60 97
Technician
10 | Welding Technology (4G) Certificate 75 108
1 Food and Beverage Wayamba College of NVQ L3 100 100
(Steward) Technology
12 |Barrister (Coffee Maker) Nva L3 25 25
13 | Facility Management Certificate 25 1
Assistant
14 |[Caregiver Lanka Hospitals NVQ L3 50 14
Corporation PLC
15 [Fundamentals of Cyber |[CISCO Network Certificate 1200 1392
Security Academy
16 [Advanced Certificate in | SIBA Campus Certificate 2500 2035
Information Technology
Total 4660 4499
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3.8 Language Training

Srl. [Course Duration |[Annual Target | Number gone on to
No. complete the Course
01 Japanese Language - JLPT 05 300 Hours | 2,000 Trainees 415
02 Chinese Language S-HK Level 01 | 150 Hours 240
03 Korean Language - EPF Topik 06 Months 10
Total 665
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HOSPITALS CONSTRUCTION

Opening up new training opportunities by tying up with nationally and
internationally recognized institutes.

Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC

CINEC Campus

RSM Heavy Vehicle and Heavy Machinery Training School
Wayamba College of Technology

Diamond Cutters Limited

Being the only institution in South Asia to get international recognition for a life
skill development course.

The Youth Corps won the first place in the island in the Certificate Course in
Psycho-counselling conducted by the National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol
(NATA).

The Youth Corps got the opportunity to represent the CERTs 2022
International Competition on Disaster Management held in Pakistan.

The participation of an officer representing the Youth Corps in the Program for
Enhancement of Emergency Response (Peer) in South Asia (Master Instructor)
held in Thailand.
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3.10 Future goals

To recruit maximum number of young cadets for life skills course as per training capacity
of all training centers.

To conduct leadership and personality development training programs for male and
female students in all schools covering the feeder areas where each National Youth
Corps Training Centre is situated.

To promote the Life Skills and Language Training Program for external groups as
a source of income generation charging a course fee from such external parties who
are trained under such training courses.

To undertake construction of Obstacle Tracks within all training centers and to make
an opportunity available for external institutions to train themselves with outbound
adventure-based activities in such playing areas.

To develop the Outbound Training Centre situated in Naula as a source of income
generation by expanding the infrastructure facilities of it.

To undertake development of training instructors as a trained pool in order that an
effective and efficient service to be made possible by improving the knowledge, skills
and attitudes of such instructors.

To see to the establishment of a Management Information System(MIS) and a
Learning Management System (LMS) by the year 2023.

To see to the establishment of an efficient and effective monitoring & evaluation
system by the year 2024.

To see to the accomplishment of a corporate system with branded certification in the
year 2024.

To see to the establishment of an organization with internationally validated quality
management systems by the year 2024

To see to 135,000 job placements of skilled workers with skills matching the trends of
labor market internally and externally by the year 2027.

To see to the projected youth community of 380,000 by the year 2027 being equipped
with life skills in tandem with the future world of work.

To see to the establishment of a socially, economically, culturally and environmentally
empowered system of 60 training centers by the year 2027.

To see to the establishment of an attractive network of training centers by the year 2027.
To see to the establishment of a 25% self-financing institution by the year 2027.

To turn out the projected beneficiaries by the year 2027 as a qualified force of
trainees to correspond with the demand of the international labor market.
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04 Training Courses

4.11Life Skills Training Course

The youth turns out to be a very important social factor in every country, and the economic
growth of a country as well as the national security depends on the youth in a very large scale.
It is considered as one of the prime needs of any country to build the youth as a complete
group of community full of skills replete with qualitative attributes. The most important thing
here is to establish and inculcate life skills in students. A student who has not come up with
life skills in himself does not have the attitudes of trying to understand the very essence that
would allow everyone to live in a better society. Sri Lanka's education system has not yet been
reformed to meet the above needs. Currently, the labor market is looking for life skills along
with competencies in hard skills in the new aspirants of employment. In a backdrop where the
need for a training program to establish life skills in the Sri Lankan youth is apparent to be
very grave at present, the National Youth Corps is currently playing the role of the foremost
government institution to fill that void.

In addition to keeping nationally recognized certifications on offer by the National Youth Corps,
it has become the only institution in South Asia to gain international recognition for a life skill
development course offering accredited hard skill and life skill certificates having entered

into agreement from the year 2022 onwards with City & Guilds which is a global leader in

skill development, being in the related field with more than 140 years of experience in skill
development, social mobility, prosperity and success.

The City and Guilds of London Institute (CGLI) was established in the city of London in 1878.
The instiute, City and Guilds is a worldwide organization known for its social, economic

and especially, educational development. This move has given the opportunity to conduct
training and educational activities associated with the courses of the National Youth Corps in
keeping with the international standards. Furthermore, the trainees have been provided the

y‘
_.! li
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opportunity to enter the local and foreign job markets and work hard with the Chartered Life
skill Instructors and other staff personnel of the National Youth Corps. The City and Guilds
Institute constantly keeps on overseeing and monitoring the life skills course of the National
Youth Corps and its evaluation process.

Pursuant to the agreements entered into with the partner institutions as such, more
opportunities are kept open for Sri Lankan youths to have exposure to capacity development
as well as to gain access to opportunities of acquiring foreign labor market placements.

This course has been designed in order that the young men and women can acquire the
necessary knowledge through various activities in such a way that they are not confined to
a classroom and receive theoretical and practical training. This course is conducted free of
charge by qualified instructors on the subject at 55 National Youth Corps Training Centers
spread out all over the island.

Benefits derived by the trainees -
A host of Certificates :
Life Skill Certificate - Domestic
Advanced Certificate in English Language
Advanced Certificate in Information Technology
SIBA Campus Certification
Outbound Training - OBT Certificate

Sports and other certificates according to the programs taken part in and the talents
demonstrated

Uniforms

A life insurance cover of Rs. 500,000.00 covering the entire 24 hours of the day during
the period of training

A vocational training worth Rs. 100,000/- at the conclusion of 06 months

Training in Tamil Language, Aesthetics, Basic Hand Tools and Physical Fitness
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The content of the syllabus of the Course in Life skills -

The conceptual analysis linked to career guidance and counseling :

1. The self-awareness and the goal setting that are necessary to develop a life philosophy
2. The access to the labour market

3. To identify the world of work and develop necessary attitudes to get into it
4, Life skills for the professional career

5. Preparing and tendering an application for employment

6. Facing an interview

7. The entrepreneurial skill development and career migration

8. Community projects and voluntary programs

A Leadership and Personality Development

1. Personal and social courtesy

2. Personal hygiene and grooming

3. Personal responsibility and obligations

4, Adolescent counseling objectives and its importance

5. Identifying the needs in adolescence

6. Sexual issues in adolescence and sexually transmitted diseases
7. Psychosexual problems and the new adolescent

8. Counseling in adolescence and spiritual intelligence management
9. Autonomy / Personality

10. Development of leadership skills

1. Development of interpersonal relationships

12. Communication skills

13. Team building

14. Self-motivation

15. Self-cognizance

16. Decision making and conflict management

17. Anxiety and emotions

18. Individual view of life

In addition to the main subject of Life Skills, the course consists of disciplines such as
Information Technology, English Language, Tamil Language, Aesthetics, Basic Hand Tools
Training, Physical Fitness Training and Outbound Adventure Based Training.




Suhjects related to the Courses and their duration

Subject 2022
Batch | Batch Il Batch Il Batch | Batch Il
(03 Months) | (03 Months) | (03 Months) | (03 Months) | (03 Months)

SIBA SIBA

Information 20 20 20 195 195

Technology

English Language 20 20 20 195 195

Physical Fitness 28

Aesthetics 30 60 30

Tamil Language 30

Basic Hand Tools 30 50 50

Training

Outbound Training 32 24 24

Additional 6 8

Soft Skill Development 100 130 120

Total Period 296 312 264 390 390
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Enlistment of Trainees — Phase |

Srl. Province Youth Corps Training Enlisted Training
No. Center completed
M F | Total | M F Total
1 Western Katunayake 27 | 15 42 121 9 21
2 Attanagalla 23 | 13 36 18 | 7 25
3 Divulapitiya 24 9 33 14 | 7 21
4 Bulathsinhala 36 | 32 68 19 | 17 36
5 Yakkala 15 | 17 32 12 | 12 24
6 Central Gampola 27 | 13 40 21 | 10 31
7 Naula 12 | 13 25 10| 1 21
8 Nuwara Eliya 5 16 21 3 110 13
9 Walapane 8 7 15 6 6 12
10 Senkadagala 1 15 26 9 9 18
1 Yatinuwara n 20 31 7 |18 25
12 Southern Galle 10 | 10 20 7 7 14
13 Neluwa 14 | 13 27 9 (10 19
14 Akuressa 12 13 25 8 1 19
15 Weeraketiya 10 | 24 34 2 |12 14
16 Suriyawewa 1 ll 22 6 8 14
17 Akmeemana 8 8 16 8 5 13
18 Dikwella 18 | 28 46 12 | 8 20
19 Lunugamvehera 7 6 13 5 2 7
20 Weerawila 7 8 5 1
21 North Central Kekirawa 20 1 31 13 4 17
23 Kalawewa 14 16 30 9 4 13
24 Anuradhapura 29 | 20 49 13 (10 23
25 Galenbindunuwewa 5 9 14 3 8 1
26 Uva Bandarawela 1 17 28 7 12 19
27 Mahiyanganaya 10 7 17 7 3 10
28 Thanamalwila 0 4 4 0 0 0
29 Monaragala 8 20 28 4 1 15
30 Wellawaya 3 1 14 0 8 8
31 Siyambalanduwa 5 8 13 2 10
32 North Western Kuliyapitiya 1 8 19 6 2 8
33 Wariyapola 20 | 48 68 14 | 35 49
34 Mawathagama 8 19 27 8 | 18 26
35 Panduwasnuwara 18 | 35 53 15 | 14 29
36 Dodangaslanda 21 1 32 10 | 10 20
37 Nattandiya 15 6 21 7 3 10
38 Wennappuwa 10 7 17 10| 6 16
39 Alawwa 1 7 18 7 1
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40 Sabaragamuwa Nivithigala 25 | 21 46 10 | 14 24
41 Galigamuwa 5 1 16 1 4 5
42 Embilipitiya 1 25 36 8 | 13 21
43 Kegalle 27 | 22 49 23 1 10 33
44 Balangoda 17 | 18 35 12 | 16 28
45 Dehiovita 14 | 14 28 10| 8 18
46 Eastern Ampara 12 1 23 8 8 16
47 Seruwawila 0 5 5 0 4 4
48 Gomarankadawala 3 7 10 1 3 4
49 Kuchchaweli 6 13 19 0 3 3
50 Trincomalee 1 6 17 1 2 3
o1 Dehiattakandiya 9 8 17 1 3 4
92 Valachchena 41 | 43 84 24 | 33 97
53 Medirigiriya 28 | 49 17 17 | 26 43
o4 Northern Mullaitivu 14 | 15 29 10] 9 19
95 Mannar 16 6 22 3 0 3
56 Vauniya 10 | 13 23 5 2 7
Total 764 [ 835 | 1599 |462|498| 960
Enlistment of Trainees — Phase |l
Srl. [ Province Youth Corps Training Enlisted Training
No. Center completed
M F Total M F | Total
1 Western Katunayake 62 28 90 32 | 16 48
Attanagalla 66 31 97 42 | 24 66
Divulapitiya 63 | 48 m 40 | 38 78
2 Bulathsinhala 65 70 135 42 | 58 100
3 Yakkala 41 20 61 25 | 15 40
4 | Central Gampola 96 73 169 61 49 110
5 Naula 46 | 54 100 29 | 34 63
6 Nuwara Eliya 30 31 61 23 | 24 47
7 Walapane 28 46 14 17 | 34 51
8 Senkadagala 49 27 76 28 | 22 50
9 Yatinuwara 63 39 102 36 | 23 59
10 |Southern Galle 39 | 39 78 28 | 26 54
1 Neluwa 31 38 69 26 | 24 50
12 Akuressa 62 64 126 26 | 46 72
13 Weeraketiya 34 41 75 19 31 50
14 Suriyawewa 29 | 33 62 15 21 36
15 Akmeemana 40 33 73 27 | 24 o1
16 Dikwella 31 26 57 10 15 25
17 Lunugamvehera 19 28 47 9 20 29
18 Weerawila 40 | 32 72 18 18 36
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19 | North Central Kekirawa 154 | 86 240 110 | 75 185
20 Kalawewa 58 57 115 40 | 48 88
21 Anuradhapura 37 27 64 29 21 50
23 Galenbindunuwewa 48 56 104 29 31 60
24 |Uva Bandarawela 60 37 97 39 | 23 62
25 Mahiyanganaya 39 57 96 35 | 34 69
26 Thanamalwila 20 19 39 10 9 19
27 Monaragala 95 | 102 197 43 | 55 98
28 Wellawaya 53 61 N4 25 | 31 56
29 Siyambalanduwa 60 58 18 48 | 42 90
30 [ North Western [ Kuliyapitiya 14 24 38 9 18 27
31 Wariyapola 54 | 62 16 26 | 46 72
32 Mawathagama 54 67 121 26 | 46 72
33 Panduwasnuwara 72 47 19 63 41 104
34 Dodangaslanda 42 37 79 32 | 27 59
35 Nattandiya 29 1 40 23 6 29
36 Wennappuwa 35 31 66 23 | 18 41
37 Alawwa 49 | 30 79 30 | 18 48
38 [Sabaragamuwa | Nivithigala 36 29 65 24 | 15 39
39 Galigamuwa 51 28 79 23 9 32
40 Embilipitiya 38 | 82 120 26 | 56 82
41 Kegalle 99 40 139 48 | 27 75
42 Balangoda 38 | 25 63 25 | 15 40
43 Dehiovita 46 | 58 104 39 | 47 86
44 |Eastern Ampara 35 | 45 80 18 | 26 44
45 Seruwawila 36 | 30 66 25 | 20 45
46 Gomarankadawala 18 20 38 13 15 28

47 Kuchchaweli 7 0 7 0 0 0
48 Trincomalee 26 34 60 14 | 26 40
49 Dehiattakandiya 46 | 43 89 32 | 24 56
Valachchena 65 T4 139 36 | 47 83

Medirigiriya 55 [ 30 85 45 | 23 68

50 | Northern Mullaitivu 18 8 26 5 5 10
51 Mannar 45 9 54 12 5 17
52 Vauniya 34 | 37 Al 18 18 36
Total 2600|2262 | 4862 (1596 (1529 | 3125
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Enlistment of Trainees - Phase lll

Srl. [Province Youth Corps Training Enlisted Training completed
No. Center M | F |Total| M F | Total
1 Western Katunayake 1 6 17 9 6 15
2 Attanagalla 15 16 31 8 13 21
3 Divulapitiya 12 10 22 6 7 13
4 Bulathsinhala 30 14 44 16 10 26
5 Yakkala 14 9 23 9 6 15
6 Central Gampola 36 24 60 28 21 49
7 Naula 14 9 23 1 9 20
8 Nuwara Eliya 15 22 37 8 15 23
9 Walapane 1 9 20 8 5 13
10 Senkadagala 13 7 20 7 4 1
1 Yatinuwara 3 5 8 2 1 3
12 [ Southern Galle 15 3 18 12 2 14
13 Neluwa 8 2 10 2 1 3
14 Akuressa 8 9 17 6 9 15
15 Weeraketiya 6 1 7 3 1 4
16 Suriyawewa 15 3 18 9 0 9
17 Akmeemana 4 4 8 4 1
18 Dikwella 7 3 10 4 2 6
19 Lunugamvehera 1 7 18 9 ) 14
20 Weerawila 0 0 0 0 0 0
21 North Central Kekirawa 5 2 7 4 0 4
23 Kalawewa 9 6 15 7 5 12
24 Anuradhapura 6 6 12 5 6 1
25 Galenbindunuwewa 3 2 5 3 2 5
26 |Uva Bandarawela 4 6 10 1 4 5
27 Mahiyanganaya 0 1 1 0 10 10
28 Thanamalwila 0 5 5 0 5 5
29 Monaragala 13 6 19 7 6 13
30 Wellawaya 0 0 0 0 0 0
Siyambalanduwa 4 5 1 4 5
North Western | Kuliyapitiya 4 5 9 3 3 6
31 Wariyapola 20 22 42 14 1 25
32 Mawathagama 12 20 32 5 13 18
33 Panduwasnuwara 28 18 46 24 17 41
34 Dodangaslanda 5 12 17 2 10 12
35 Nattandiya 3 9 3 6 9
36 Wennappuwa 8 7 15 8 6 14
37 Alawwa 8 8 0 0 0
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38 |Sabaragamuwa | Nivithigala 15 20 35 5 10 15
39 Galigamuwa 25 9 34 12 6 18
40 Embilipitiya 22 16 38 19 13 32
41 Kegalle 22 15 37 13 5 18
42 Balangoda 31 20 51 15 10 25
43 Dehiovita 18 14 32 9 8 17
44 | Eastern Ampara 12 4 16 7 0 7
45 Seruwawila 0 0 0 0 0 0
46 Gomarankadawala 0 0 0 0 0 0
47 Kuchchaweli 0 0 0 0 0 0
48 Trincomalee 1 3 4 1 3 4
49 Dehiattakandiya 0 0 0 0 0 0
50 Valachchena 9 3 12 2 2 4
51 Medirigiriya 2 0 2 1 0 1
92 |Northern Mullaitivu 3 0 3 0 0 0
53 Mannar 9 3 12 6 2 8
94 Vauniya 9 8 17 5 3 8
Total 555 | 416 | 9N 343 288 631
Srl. No. | Course in Life Skill Enlisted Training completed
Training M F Total M F Total
01. Phase | 764 835 1599 462 498 960
02. Phase Il 2600 2262 4862 1596 1529 3125
03. Phase llI 555 416 97 343 288 631
Total 3919 3513 7432 2401 2315 4716

4.1.1Life Skill and Leadership Training Programs - External Institutions

Srl. No. [Month No. of Beneficiaries
1 January 10M
2 February 3753
3 March 6125
4 april 1728
5 May 4726
6 June 3683
7 July 1706
8 Auguest 1839
9 September 1392
10 Octomber 6201
1 November 5707
12 December 5248
Full Total 43,119
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4.1.2 Training Programs of School Prefects

According to the requests made by the principals concerned to provide training related to
the development of leadership qualities and abilities for the student leaders of their schools,
the Youth Corps conducts training workshops for the school prefects and these training
workshops are undertaken with the resource contribution of the officers of the National
Youth Corps Headquarters as well as the instructors of the training centers.

These training workshops provide the school prefects with the knowledge they require in
their duties as school prefects by way of related knowhow, lectures and practical activities
they need to improve their leadership qualities to be successful in their role as a student
leader.
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4.2 Advanced Certificate Gourse in Information Technology and English

Young male and female cadets completing life skills training who are interested in English
and Information Technology can enroll in the Advanced Certificate in Information Technology
and English course. This six-month course is conducted in collaboration with the Sri Lanka
International Buddhist Academy approved by the University Grants Commission.

At the end of the course, two separate certificates are awarded for the subject of English
and the subject of Information Technology, and the course has been designed in such a
manner that those who successfully complete the course can proceed to the diploma
course, the advanced diploma course and the graduate course for those who have passed
03 Advanced Level subjects.

Province National Youth 2022 First Batch 2022 Second Batch
Corps Training (Six months) (Six months)
Centres Registered | Completed | Registered | Completed
2 g2 |EL|2R|EE|2R|EE|22|EE
— weo | LV Wwo(llV|lwWwm | SV | Wam|ll vV
& el | el dlef| =8
1 |Western Katunayake 40 40 | 28 | 26 33 33 | 32 | 33
2 Attanagalla 35 17 26 12 33 26 28 | 25
3 Divulapitiya 18 18 ll 1 26 26 | 22 | 23
4 Bulathsinhala 32 35 26 | 25 26 0 1 0
5 Yakkala 17 32 12 25 26 26 | 22 | 16
6 |Central Gampola 82 82 67 | 68 32 32 | 32 | 32
7 Naula 59 63 | 43 | 42 | 32 32 | 29 | 28
8 Nuwara Eliya 19 19 16 12 4 4 1 0
9 Walapane 30 30 16 16 22 22 16 | 20
10 Senkadagala 53 53 | 34 | 34 39 39 | 38 | 38
1 Yatinuwara 37 37 20 | 20 36 36 | 34 | 32
12 | Southern Galle 27 26 17 24 23 23 16 20
13 Neluwa 32 23 15 14 32 19 23 | 16
14 Akuressa 66 66 41 39 | 48 | 48 | 40 | 45
15 Weeraketiya 68 68 | 42 | 41 37 37 | 27 | 29
16 Suriyawewa 44 44 | 36 | 35 27 27 27 | 27
17 Akmeemana 29 29 16 17 43 43 | 36 | 43
18 Dikwella 27 27 19 21 35 35 | 29 | 26
19 Lunugamvehera 28 35 17 18 27 27 23 | 24
20 Weerawila 35 35 | 28 | 28 | 29 29 | 28 | 29
21 | North Central Kekirawa 73 73 94 | 54 63 58 61 94
22 Kalawewa 53 53 | 45 | 44 | 85 85 | 78 | 78
23 Anuradhapura 31 31 20 17 50 50 | 49 | 48
24 Medirigiriya 47 48 | 40 | 40 | 29 29 | 26 | 27
25 Galenbindunuwewa | 63 63 55 | 49 | 120 [ 120 | 82 | 86
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26 |Uva Bandarawela 42 42 26 25 35 35 | 35 | 35
27 Mahiyanganaya 46 46 | 37 | 37 34 34 13 24
28 Thanamalwila 24 24 21 21 16 16 15 15
29 Monaragala 61 61 53 | 53 | 32 32 | 32 | 32
30 Wellawaya 64 66 | 37 | 37 36 35 | 33 | 33
31 Siyambalanduwa | 40 40 | 33 | 34 | 37 38 | 20 | 33
32 | North Western | Kuliyapitiya 21 21 21 21 36 40 | 27 31
33 Wariyapola 81 82 67 | 68 66 66 | 66 | 65
34 Mawathagama 35 35 | 28 | 32 | 46 64 | 33 | 36
35 Panduwasnuwara | 56 52 41 32 35 35 | 24 | 33
36 Dodangaslanda 36 36 24 | 23 39 39 | 32 | 33
37 Nattandiya 9 9 6 6 1 18 5 16
38 Wennappuwa 33 32 28 27 42 42 | 34 | 30
39 Alawwa 28 27 21 20 | 35 41 25 | 32
40 | Sabaragamuwa [ Nivithigala 39 39 24 | 23 23 23 22 | 20
41 Galigamuwa 24 24 17 17 23 23 | 22 | 23
42 Embilipitiya 57 59 [ 35 | 39 32 32 | 3 31
43 Kegalle 38 38 31 31 28 28 | 28 | 28
44 Balangoda 65 65 [ 55 | 50 | 34 | 34 | 34 | 34
45 Dehiovita T T 63 61 | 100 | 100 [ 95 | 98
46 | Eastern Ampara 54 54 | 33 | 38 13 13 13 13
47 Seruwawila 41 41 17 16 32 32 | 32 | 31
48 Gomarankadawala | 26 26 18 18 23 21 15 20
49 Kuchchaweli 25 25 5 5 10 10 4 6
50 Trincomalee 35 35 | 35 | 35 | 49 49 | 44 | 48
51 Dehiattakandiya 51 52 [ 33 | 34 | 75 75 61 61
52 Valachchena 149 | 149 | 110 | 110 | 58 58 | 40 | 44
54 | Northern Mullaitivu 46 46 21 21 20 31 (529
55 Mannar 46 43 19 15 42 42 G2l G2
56 Vauniya 57 57 | 36 =8| 25 23 21 21
! Total s ik o
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4.3 Referrals to Vocational Training - Young Male and Female Cadets

Apart from basic life skills, the life skills based on professional skills can be identified and
there are also skills that are unique to each profession. And the professionals who are sent
for foreign jobs should also be given familiarity with the life skills specific to each country. It
is important to pay attention to it in vocational education and job training as well. A person
will also need those unique life skills to boost efficiency and effectiveness in his or her
respective profession. Particularly important in this regard are effective communication and
interpersonal skills, leadership ability, problem solving, work ethics, time management and
team spirit.

The trainees who successfully complete the six-month training will be directed to

the vocational training courses under the following professional fields handled by the
recognized vocational education institutes of the public and private sector selected
according to their professional interest and the capabilities they have at present. The
hitherto existed method of paying a sum amounting to Rs. 10,000 as course fees paid to
the trainees by the National Youth Corps saw a revision to pay out a maximum sum of Rs.
100,000 per trainee after having selected 30 persons from each of the training center for the
purpose of referring them to follow vocational training courses on full-time scholarships
with effect from the Phase | in 2021. The rest of the male and female trainees are directed
to the charge free vocational training courses of their choice, laying the necessary basic
foundation for them to find the way forward to their future professional field.

In the same vein, the National Youth Corps continues to monitor the progress of the trainees
whilst their vocational training courses are in motion and carries on with the task of guiding
them through to suitable employment opportunities.

1.[Hotel and Tourism 14. | Building and Construction
2. | Vehicle Repair and Maintenance and 15. [ Wood Work and Carpentry
Automobile Mechanics
3. [Nursing and Care Service 16. | Finance, Banking and Management
4. | Information Communication and 17.| Human Resource Management
Multimedia Technology
5. | Beauty Culture, Hair Dressing and 18.| Dancing
Bridal Makeover
6.| Welder and Aluminium Fabricator 19. | Aesthetics
7.| Languages 20. | Other
8.| Garments and Tailoring 21. | Body Wellness
9.| Refrigeration and Air Conditioning 22. | Printing and Packaging
10. | Arts and Media and Graphics 23. | Agricultural Plantations and Animal
Husbandry
11. | Electrical, Electronics and 24.| Landscaping
Telecommunication
12. | Heavy Machine and Equipment
Operator
13.| Pre School Teacher
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5|2 % o :_g o % NYC Course Fees
sl 5|2 5|22
a| & wlalg
1 Ampara 8 8 [ Nil| 8 | Nil [ 4 | Nil Nil Nil
2 Dehiattakandiya 2 2 | Nil| 2 Nil | Nil [ Nil Nil Nil
3 Gomarankadawala Nil [ Nil [ Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil [ Nil Nil Nil
4 ;L:_-: Kuchchaveli 3 3 | Nil| 3 | Nilt| 3 | Nil Nil Nil
5 Lr:\; Seruwawila 8 8 [ Nil | 8 | Nil [ Nil | Nil Nil Nil
6 Trincomalee Nil | Nil [ Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil
7 Medirigiriya 6 6 0 6 0 0 0 0 0
8 Valachchena 10 8 2 8 | Nil 1 Nil Nil Nil
9 Yatinuwara 37 | 37 | Nil | 37 | Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil
10 Valapane 38 | 17 | 22 | 17 | 22 4 0 1,900,400.00 1,956,400.00
1 E Senkadagala 6 6 Nil 6 Nil [ Nil | Nil Nil Nil
12 § Nuwara Eliya 28 | 14 | 14 | 14 | 15 | Nil | Nil 879,880.00 879,880.00
13 Naula Nil | Nil [ Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil [ Nil Nil Nil
14 Gampola 57 | 47 | 10 | 43 | 10 1 Nil 1,137,000.00 1,137,000.00
15 TE Kekirawa 46 | 46 | Nil | 34 | 12 | Nil | Nil Nil Nil
16 § Kalawewa 29 | 28 1 27 1 Nil | Nil 62,000.00 62,000.00
17 < | Galenbindunuwewa | 30 [ 30 | Nil | 28 2 Nil | Nil 50,000.00 50,000.00
18 §’ Anuradhapura 43 | 36 7 36 7 Nil | Nil 642,000.00 1,822,000.00
19 £ | Vauniya 6 6 Nil | 6 Nil | 2 [ Nil Nil Nil
20 % Mullaitivu 1 1 Nil 1 Nil [ Nil | Nil Nil Nil
21 2 | Mannar 8 8 [ Nil | 8 | Nil [ Nil | Nil Nil Nil
22 Wennappuwa 9 5 4 5 4 [ Nil | Nil 330,000.00 1,040,000.00
23 Dodangaslanda 9 5 4 8 1 Nil | Nil 195,000.00 195,000.00
24 § Alawwa 1 1 Nil 1 Nil | Nil [ Nil Nil Nil
25 g Wariyapola 37|18 |19 | 17 | 20 | Nil | Nil | 576,000.00 576,000.00
26 < | Panduwasnuwara 43 | 37 6 37 6 Nil | Nil 304,000.00 304,000.00
27 | S [Nattandiya 2 [ 1 [ v [ 1] 1 [ N[Nt 800000 68,000.00
28 Mawathagama 21 1 10 n 10 11 | Nil | Nil 927,000.00 1,287,000.00
29 Kuliyapitiya 6 2 4 1 5 Nil | Nil 125,000.00 125,000.00
30 © Nivithigala 42 | 42 | Nil | & 1 1 Nil Nil Nil
31 § Kegalle 30 | 24 6 25 5 21 2 573,000.00 573,000.00
32 g Galigamuwa 22 | 18 4 18 4 Nil | 4 232,000.00 232,000.00
33 g Embilipitiya 33 | 25 8 28 5 Nil | Nil 147,000.00 147,000.00
34 ﬁ Dehiovita 9 6 3 6 3 Nil | Nil 113,000.00 113,000.00
35 Balangoda 19 | 17 2 18 1 Nil | Nil 78,500.00 78,500.00
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36 Weerawila 1 T | Nit | 1 ] Nil [ Nil | Nil Nil Nil

37 Weeraketiya 19 | 17 2 19 | NiL | 1 | Nil Nil Nil

38 Suriyawewa 16 | 16 | Nil | 16 | Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil

39 g Neluwa 39 | 39 | Nil [ 39 | Nil | Nil [ Nil Nil Nil

40 g Lunugamvehera 2 2 | Nil | 2 | Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil

41 & |ocalle 22 | 22 | Nil | 21 T ] Nil [ Nil 100,000.00 395,000.00

42 Dickwella T I NiL | T [Nt | T [ Nil][ Nil 81,500.00 81,500.00

43 Akuressa 141 2 |12 2 12 | Nil | Nil 694,640.00 694,640.00

44 Akmeemana 9 7 2 7 2 4 | Nil 195,000.00 200,000.00

45 Wellawaya Nil [ Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil

46 Thanamalwila Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil | Nil [ Nil | Nil Nil Nil

47 o Siyambalanduwa 2 2 | Nil | 2 | Nil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil

48 = | Monaragala 311 29| 2 31 T [ Nil [ Nil 32,400.00 32,400.00

49 Mahiyanganaya 28 1 22| 6 | 22| 6 2 | Nil 382,800.00 382,800.00

50 Bandarawela 23 123 | 0 | 23 | Nil | 4 | Nil 1,157,000.00 1,157,000.00

51 Yakkala 38 (29 9 | 29| 9 | Nil [ Nil 524,000.00 1,104,000.00

52 c | Katunayake 8 5 3 5 3 [ Nil [ Nil 2,146,000.00 2,146,000.00

53 ‘% Divulapitiya 18 5 13 [ Nil | 18 | Nil | Nil 942,480.00 942,480.00

54 = | Bulathsinhala 9 2 5 4 2 | Nil 385,600.00 667,600.00

55 Attanagalla 63 | 31 |1 3230 33 |Nil| 10 2,213,800.00 2,301,800.00
Total 992 | 781 [ 196 | 745 | 215 | 28 | 28 17,195,000.00 20,751,000.00
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4.3.1Referrals to Vocational Training (Field-wise)

ilrl. Field Province
0.
Eastern @
_ c |3 o
C s |E ©
= w | @ s
a9 c 2 | E c |
SIS le 22|82 & |2
© O o o o © o > I
w |lo |[Z |Z2 [z | |vn |D [ |R
1. Hotel and Tourism 14 |34 |68 |01 (34 (55 (44 |34 (50 |334
2. Vehicle Repair and Maintenance |07 |33 |28 |01 |22 |30 |16 |19 |24 |180
and Automobile Mechanics
3. Nursing and Care Service 40 |05 26 (19 (15 |08 (23 (136
4. Information Communicationand |02 |36 |02 |11 (10 |08 (03 |01 (09 |82
Multimedia Technology
5. Beauty Culture, Hair Dressing and 10 |19 1 (03 [16 |01 |06 (66
Bridal Makeover
6 Welder and Aluminium Fabricator 02 (01 1 |02 (04 |08 |28
7. Languages 02 1 |01 08 |02 |24
8. Garments and Tailoring 03 08 |01 |02 |04 |01 |01 20
9. Refrigeration and Air Conditioning 01 |06 03 |05 04 |19
10. Arts and Media and Graphics 07 |01 02 (02 (02 |04 |18
1. Electrical, Electronics and 01 (01 03 |05 |03 |03 |16
Telecommunication
12. Heavy Machine and Equipment 01 |03 04 (06 |01 15
Operator
13. Pre School Teacher 03 01 |03 (02 02 |1
14. Building and Construction 03 06 09
15. Wood Work and Carpentry 02 02 03 07
16. Finance, Banking and 05 01 06
Management
17. Human Resource Management 02 |04 06
18. Dancing 01 |02 03
19. Aesthetics 01 01 02
20. Other 03 03
21. Body Wellness 01 01 |02
22. Printing and Packaging 02 02
23. Agricultural Plantations and 02 02
Animal Husbandry
24, Landscaping 01 01
Total 37 (166 |148 |15 (128 (155 (123 (84 |[136 |992
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B Total Referrals
1. Hotel and Tourism 17. Human Resource Management
2. Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 18. Dancing
and Automobile Mechanics
3. Nursing and Care Service 19. Aesthetics
4, Information Communication and 20. Other
Multimedia Technology
5. Beauty Culture, Hair Dressing and | 21. Body Wellhess
Bridal Makeover
6. Welder and Aluminium Fabricator |22. Printing and Packaging
7. Languages 23. Agricultural Plantations and Animal
Husbandry
8. Garments and Tailoring 24, Landscaping
9. Refrigeration and Air Conditioning
10. Arts and Media and Graphics
1. Electrical, Electronics and
Telecommunication
12. Heavy Machine and Equipment
Operator
13. Pre School Teacher
14. Building and Construction
15. Wood Work and Carpentry
16. Finance, Banking and Management
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5 Vocational Training Courses
Conducted by the Youth Corps

9.1 Hotel Training School - Damhulia

The hotel sector fulfils a great responsibility towards the advancement of the tourism
industry. Moreover, the number of local and foreign job opportunities generated by this
sector is also of very high proportion. Professionals with proper training and education
should enter the hotel industry in order to carry out that duty in a proper manner and to
make use of this sector for the development of the country. In that task, the role of a hotel
school is very important.

The Hotel Training School of the National Youth Corps in the year 2014 gets off the

ground with the prime objective of becoming the best hotel training school in Sri Lanka

that provides hospitality services in the field of hotel training courses. Among the other
objectives of establishing this hotel training school is to open up the opportunities to provide
professional training qualification immediately after the completion of the basic course for
the professional success of the trainees undergoing the basic training in the National Youth
Corps and also, directly cater to the labor market young hands with practically proficient.

The youth who are directly entering the National Youth Corps training centers and the youth
who wish to join in the hotel industry straight away are going under the wings of the Hotel
Training School. This Hotel Training School has produced around 1500 perfect professionals
for the hotel industry from the year 2014 up until now.

Two batches are admitted to the Hotel Training School of the National Youth Corps annually
for training, and the following courses in the hotel industry (05) are operational under this
training. From the second phase of the year 2022, the Assistant Bungalow Keeper Course
got underway for the purpose of providing special training on all aspects required to work
and manage as keepers or caretakers of the local and foreign bungalows.

01. Pastry & Bakery - NVQ Level IV

02. International Cookery - NVQ Level IV

03. Food & Beverage Serving - NVQ Level IV
04. House Keeping - NVQ Level i

05.  Front Office - NVQ Level IV

06. Assistant Bungalow Keeper - NVQ Level Il
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Training in brief

The above training courses are National Vocational Qualifications at the level of (NVQ) Ill and
IV and this hotel training institute has the capacity to provide training to 200 trainees at a
time.

This training school is equipped with all the modern facilities required for a hotel training
school and training is provided by a panel of qualified and skilled instructors in the hotel
industry.

In this exercise herein, recruitment is done through a proper advertising channels and no
fees are charged for the courses. Accommodation facilities will also be provided during the
training period. After the industry-related training, all male and female trainees will have
the opportunity for securing recognized jobs in the tourism hotel sector in the country with
the National Vocational Qualifications (NVQ Il and V) in their possession.

Year Registered Pass-outs on completion Job
Trainees of the Course Placements
2014 1 185 149 94
2015 1 210 169 137
2016 | Al 57 49
2016 11 258 233 208
2017 | 185 137 106
2017 1l 182 145 145
2018 | 102 82 82
2019 | 102 87 86
2019 11 97 81 81
2020 | 104 55 45
20211 86 38 37
2022 | 127 13 12
2022 1 269 216 212
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Year Receptionist | House Food & | Pastry & | International | Assistant
Keeping | Beverage | Bakery Cookery Bungalow
Serving Keeper
2014 - | Registered - 35 48 46 56 -
Deserted - 1 n 06 08
Completed - 24 37 40 48
On the Job Training - 09 23 31 31
2015 - | Registered - 34 52 51 73 -
Deserted - 08 12 a7 14
Completed - 26 40 44 59
On the Job Training - 26 30 41 40
2016 - | Registered - 1 13 18 29 -
Deserted - 02 02 05 05
Completed - 09 n 13 24
On the Job Training - 07 n 13 18
2016 - Il | Registered 30 52 58 57 61 -
Deserted 06 09 04 01 05
Completed 24 43 54 56 56
On the Job Training 17 38 50 50 53
2017 - | Registered 15 32 51 43 44 -
Deserted 05 06 16 09 12
Completed 10 26 35 34 32
On the Job Training 10 23 20 23 30
2017 - Il | Registered n 35 43 42 51 -
Deserted 02 n 05 05 14
Completed 09 24 38 37 37
On the Job Training 09 24 38 37 37
2018 - | Registered 08 19 16 25 34 -
Deserted 00 02 05 01 04
Completed 06 15 n 21 29
On the Job Training 06 15 n 21 29
2019 - | Registered 15 15 17 28 28 -
Deserted 03 06 02 03 03
Completed 12 09 15 25 25
On the Job Training 12 09 15 25 25
2019 - Il | Registered 03 25 14 26 29 -
Deserted 00 07 04 03 05
Completed 03 18 10 23 24
On the Job Training 03 18 10 23 24
2020 - I | Registered 07 23 25 26 23 -
Deserted 02 17 12 09 09
Completed 05 06 13 17 14
On the Job Training 04 06 n 13 n
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2021 - | Registered 07 1 20 25 23 -
Deserted 04 05 15 13 n
Completed 03 06 05 12 12
On the Job Training 03 06 05 12 n

2022 -1 | Registered 03 21 39 25 39 -
Deserted 00 02 07 02 07
Completed 03 19 32 23 32
On the Job Training 03 19 32 23 32

2022 - Il | Registered 19 41 52 47 85 25
Deserted 09 04 16 08 17 00
Completed 10 37 36 39 69 25
On the Job Training 10 37 35 39 66 25

£ )
Ry =

\V
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9.2 Outhound Adventure-hased Training Genter - Naula

The Adventure Based Training Center of the Youth Corps is situated adjacent to the A - 9
Road at Arangala, Naula in Matale District. This center provides Adventure Based Training to
the youth corps trainees as well as the staffs and trainees of external institutions.

Adventure Based Training is an integral part of the Youth Corps preliminary training course,
and focuses on developing life skills in the individuals.

Development of related skills with special focus on the areas of observation, getting
acquainted with people, creative thinking, self-confidence, self-discipline, perseverance
exercises, management exercises, enjoyment, trust, leadership, responsibility and
accountability, environmental conservation and drug prevention are herein dealt with.
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Objectives -

a. To develop leadership qualities and building confidence in trainees through motivational
activities.

b. To improve performance through experiential learning.

Activities at hand during the
Adventure Based Training

Blind Polygon

Lawa Activity
Confidence Bridge

Gill Net

Dangle Doo

Cross Rope

Spider Net

Self - Motivation Web
Double Balancing Rope
Tarzan Rope

Scramble Jumping Net
Swing Ladder & Bridge
Trust Fall

Arial Rope
Shuttle Run
Net Climbing & TTS Rope

It has the following facilities and infrastructure to
conduct multiple team building activities.

Dynamic Obstacle course
Artificial wall climbing and Rappelling
Archery / Shooting

Adequate open space to conduct team building
activities

Camp Fire with fun games
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Adventure-hased Training - For Youth Gorps Trainees

36 | Kalawewa 7
37 | Galenbindunuwewa 8
38 [ Anuradhapura 16
39 [Medirigiriya 33
40 | Embilipitiya 17
41 Balangoda 18
42 | Nivithigala 21
43 | Galigamuwa 3
44 | Dehiovita 14
45 | Kegalle April 28
46 | Nattandiya 6
47 | Wennappuwa 12
48 | Kuliyapitiya 7
49 | Alawwa 10
50 [Katunayake 12
51 Divulapitiya 21
52 | Bulathsinhala 32
53 [ Attanagalla 21
54 | Yakkala 13

Total 766

First Batch

Srl. [ Training Center Month | No. of
No. held | Trainees
1 Senkadagala 18
2 Yatinuwara 21
3 Gampola 29
4 Nuwara Eliya 12
5 Walapane 1
6 Naula 18
7 Panduwasnuwara 27
8 Dodangaslanda 18
9 Mawathagama 20
10 Wariyapola 40
1 Kuchchaweli 3
12 | Seruwawila Mareh =3
13 Gomarankadawala 2
14 Trincomalee 3
15 Dehiattakandiya 3
16 Ampara 14
17 Valachchena 35
18 Mahiyanganaya 10
19 Bandarawela 14
20 ([ Monaragala 15
21 Wellawaya 7
22 | Siyambalanduwa

23 [ Neluwa 14
24 | Galle 12
25 | Akmeemana 13
26 | Akuressa 16
27 | Dikwella 17
28 | Suriyawewa 13
29 |Weerawila April

30 |Lunugamvehera

31 Weeraketiya 14
32 | Mannar 1
33 Mullaitivu 16
34 | Vauniya 4
35 [Kekirawa 4
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Second Batch

Sn | Training Center Month No. of 39 [ Wariyapola 73
held Trainees 40 | Mawathagama 69

1 [Akuressa 209 41 | Panduwasnuwara 103

2 | Galle 42 | Dodangaslanda 96

3 [Neluwa 43 | Nattandiya 27

4 | Akmeemana 44 | Wennappuwa 43

9 |Weeraketiya 172 45 | Alawwa 53

6 |Lunugamvehera 46 | Kegalle August 75

7 [Weerawila 47 | Nivithigala 39

8 |Suriyawewa 48 | Galigamuwa 32

9 |Dikwella 49 | Embilipitiya 78

10 | Anuradhapura 320 50 | Balangoda 43

11| Kekirawa 51 | Dehiovita 87

12 | Kalawewa 52 | Seruwila 43

13 | Galenbindunuwewa 53 [ Senkadagala o

14 | Trincomalee 69 =

15 | Kuchchaweli >4 | Gampola ‘g. 2N

16 | Gomarankadawala 95 | Yatinuwara ?

17 |Valachchena 68 Total 3022

18 | Ampara 43

19 | Dehiattakandiya 53

— August

20 | Medirigiriya 63

21 | Divulapitiya 76

22 | Attanagalla 65

23 | Katunayake 57

24 | Bulathsinhala 98

25 |Yakkala 40

26 | Vauniya 46

27 | Mullaitivu

28 [ Mannar 19

29 | Bandarawela 61

30 | Mahiyanganaya 68

31 | Thanamalwila 23

32 [ Monaragala 99

33 | Wellawaya 57

34 | Siyambalanduwa 93

35 | Naula 69

36 | Walapane 48

37 | Nuwara Eliya 46

38 | Kuliyapitiya 28
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47 | Kekirawa 7
48 | Kalawewa 15
49 | Galenbindunuwewa 5
50 | Anuradhapura 12
51 | Dehiovita December 17
52 [ Attanagalla 21
53 [ Mahiyanganaya 1
54 | Divulapitiya 1

Total 623

Third Batch
o %S %
i‘ Training Center Month held zo g
wn =
1 | Nuwara Eliya November 24
2 | Walapane November / 12
December
3 | Naula 20
8 | Mannar 5
10 | Vauniya
11 | Panduwasnuwara 38
12 | Dodangaslanda 18
13 | Mawathagama 18
14 | Wariyapola 21
15 | Nattandiya 9
16 | Wennappuwa 12
17 | Kuliyapitiya
18 | Neluwa
19 | Galle 14
20 | Akmeemana 5
21 | Akuressa November 14
22 | Dikwella
23 | Suriyawewa
26 | Weeraketiya
27 | Embilipitiya 32
28 | Balangoda 24
29 | Nivithigala 18
30 | Galigamuwa 18
31 | Kegalle 18
32 | Bandarawela 9
33 | Monaragala 13
35 | Thanamalwila 5
36 | Siyambalanduwa 4
37 | Katunayake 15
38 | Yakkala November/ 15
December
39 | Bulathsinhala November 29
40 [ Senkadagala 12
41 | Yatinuwara 3
42 | Gampola 48
43 | Trincomalee December 4
44 | Ampara 8
45 [ Medirigiriya 1
46 | Valachchena 4




Adventure-based Training - External Institutions

Srl. I No. of
No. Institution Event Venue Event Date Participants
1 National Center for 2022.02.26 - 2022.02.27
. 33
Leadership Development
2 Uni ity of Peradeni 2022.05.06 - 2022.05.08 86
niversity of Peradeniya Naula Outbound
3 Department of Manpower | ABT Centre 2022.03.25 /26/ 27 - 258
and Employment 2022.03.29/30/31
4 Sihina Balakaa Youth 2022.09.30 - 2022.10.02 40
Organization
Total 4317




9.3 Yakkala Resthetic Training Genter

This course has been set in motion with the aim of identifying young people scattered all over the
island who are talented in music and dance, developing their talents so that they are able to move
up to the national and international level thereby producing talented artists. Courses implemented in
this exercise are as follows:

Higher National Diploma Course in Dancing and Drumming
Certificate Course in Music

The Course leading to the Higher National Diploma in Dancing and Drumming which is set to be
launched with the aim of producing a person equipped with a comprehensive knowledge of dancing,
is a two-year course with NVQ Level - 6 qualification. The Course is conducted by the expert dancing
teachers of the island. The tasks herein undertaken involve the provision of wide knowledge of
indegenous dancing traditions as well as western dancing traditions, opening up of space for social
media, media organizations and other performing activities through group dancing, exposure of the
trainees for local and foreign exams and the provision of facilities necessary towards that end.

The Certificate Course in Music is a one-year course with NVQ Level - 4 entitlement. This Course
will be conducted by the expert musicians, artistes and teachers of the island. The tasks herein
undertaken involve the provision of extensive knowledge in the fields of Indian music, western
music, applied music, dancing techniques and group music, opening up opportunities for social
media, media organizations and other performing activities through group music, exposure of the
trainees for examinations and the provision of facilities necessary towards that end.

k
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9.4 Courses of Language Training

Making available 2000 trainees or thereabout annually by way of providing the language
training (Chinese, Japanese and Korean) and developing the skills of young men and women
with the expectation of producing trained labor for overseas employment opportunities
assumes a major place among the strategic plans of the National Youth Corps.

Accordingly, these language courses are being implemented with the participation of youth
corps trainees as well as external parties. The teaching activities of these courses are
conducted in 14 Training Centers of the National Youth Corps and the said languages are
taught by the expert instructors in Chinese, Japanese and Korean languages.

Language Province District Training Center e § -
Courses 2 3 - 9
28 | & |3
3% |« & 2
°8 |=E e
23 |88 a
Japanese Sabaragamuwa | Kegalle Galigamuwa 36 2022.04.30 | 2022.10.30
Language - | Cetral Kandy Gampola 35 2022.04.30 |2022.10.30
(JLPT 04/NAT -
04) North Central Anuradhapura | Galenbindunuwewa 37 2022.04.19 |2022.10.26
Southern Hambantota Weeraketiya 34 2022.04.30 | 2022.10.30
Western Gampaha Divulapitiya 42 2022.04.30 |2022.10.15
Colombo Headquarters 62 2022.06.04
Rajagiriya 86 2022.06.20 |2023.03.14
The course conducted via online mode 83 2022.09.26
Total number of trainees who followed the the Course in Japanese 415
Language
Central Mahanuwara | Senkadagala 25 2022.04.30 | 2022.10.29
Matale Dambulla 4 2022.03.15 |2022.06.23
(Batch | of 2022)
(Batch Il of 2022) 72 2022.08.15 | 2023.01.11
North Western | Kurunegala Mawathagama 14 2022.04.18 | 2022.10.30
Southern Galle Galle 24 2022.04.30 |2022.10.15
Sabaragamuwa | Kegalle Kegalle 25 2022.04.30 |2022.10.15
Uva Badulla Bandarawela 16 2022.05.28 | 2022.10.29
Western Gampaha Katunayake 20 2022.04.30 |2022.10.29
Total number of trainees who followed the the Course in Chinese 240
Language
Total number of trainees who followed the the Course in Korean 10
Language
Full Total 665
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With the youth development in mind, many a program under development programs such as
Drug Prevention Program, Adolescent Health and Sexually Transmitted Disease Program,
Non-communicable Disease Program, Essay Competition, Debate Contest, Quiz Competition
(Centers), Disaster Management program, Sports Meet (Provincial), Environment Project
and Community Development, etc. have been implemented successfully.

6.1Narcotic Drug Prevention Programs

The drug prevention program conducted by the Youth Corps at the center level for all
intended groups with the objective of creating a generation of youth free from alcohol and
drugs, continued to go ahead in collaboration with the National Board of Dangerous Drugs
Control (ADIC - Alcohol & Drug Information Center) or the Drug Prevention Bureau of the Sri
Lanka Police.

Ist Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
S S s
Srl. Province Youth Corps Training E E E
No. Center EventDate [ -5 [EventDate [ 35 Event Date [ -5
1 Katunayake 2022.02.01 | 22 | 2022.07.19 50 2022.11.10 13
2 Attanagalla 2022.07.22 | 22 | 2022.07.22 60 2022.11.09 20
3 Western Divulapitiya 2022.02.10 14 2022.07.14 47 2022.11.09 14
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.03.28 | 31 2022.08.15 81 2022.11.09 28
5 Yakkala 2022.02.03 | 20 | 2022.07.18 35 2022.11.16 15
6 Bandarawela 2022.03.04 | 16 | 2022.08.05 51 2022.12.02 7
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.03.15 10 2022.09.21 37 2022-11-16
8 Thanamalwila 2022.08.29 14 2022.12.12 5
9 v Monaragala 20220203 | 12 | 20220714 | 86 | 2022-11-09 | 16
10 Wellawaya 2022.02.03 5 14.04.2022 50
n Siyambalanduwa 2022.02.24 7 2022.07.14 77 2022.12.06 5
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12 Galle 2022.02.25 | 13 | 2022.07.18 56 2022.11.17 13

13 Neluwa 2022.02.25 | 16 | 2022.07.20 55 2022.11.1 3

14 Akuressa 2022.02.25 | 19 | 2022.07.12 61 2022.11.09 1

15 Weeraketiya 2022.02.25 | 6 | 2022.07.14 45 2022.11.04 8

16 Southern Suriyawewa 2022.02.25 | 10 | 2022.07.21 27 2022.11.27

17 Akmeemana 2022.02.02 | 13 | 2022.07.20 52 2022.11.17

18 Dikwella 2022.02.25 2022.07.19 14 2022.11.11

19 Lunugamvehera 2022.02.25 2022.07.14 27 2022.11.09 13

20 Weerawila 2022.02.25 2022.08.05 30

21 Nivithigala 25.02.2022 | 20 | 2022.07.21 32 16.11.2022 13

22 Galigamuwa 2022.02.25 | 3 | 2022.09.27 22 13.12.2022 15

23 Embilipitiya 2022.02.03 | 20 | 2022.07.12 78 17.11.2022 31

Sabaragamuwa

24 Kegalle 2022.03.31 | 26 | 2022.09.01 52 11.11.2022 17

25 Balangoda 2022.02.24 | 10 | 2022.07.22 36 18.11.2022 21

26 Dehiovita 2022.02.24 | 16 | 2022.08.30 60 11.11.2022 15

27 Mullaitivu 03.02.2022 | 16 | 2022.07.14 8

28 Northern Mannar 15.03.2022 2022.09.01 12 2022.11.09 8

29 Vauniya 17.02.2022 2022.07.12 29 2022.11.09 7

30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.02.28 2022.07.12 28 2022.10.31 7

31 Wariyapola 2022.02.28 | 33 | 2022.08.09 57 2022.11.16 19

32 Mawathagama 2022.02.28 | 1 | 2022.08.22 61 2022.11.03 17

33 Panduwasnuwara 2022.02.22 | 14 | 2022.07.14 91 2022.11.09 | 38

North Western 2022.02.11

34 Dodangaslanda 2022.02.24 32 | 2020.07.20 54 2022.11.09 9

35 Nattandiya 2022.02.28 | 9 | 2022.09.13 12 2022.11.23 9

36 Wennappuwa 2022.02.28 | 10 | 2022.07.12 38 2022.11.1 n

37 Alawwa 2022.03.03 | 8 | 2022.08.23 34

38 Kekirawa 2022.02.28 | 12 | 2022.07.22 | 153 2022.11.09 6

39 Kalawewa 2022.02.24 | 8 | 2022.07.15 86 2022-10-10 | 10

4o | North Central Anuradhapura 20220304 | 1 | 20220711 | 38 | 20221201 | 6

41 Galenbindunuwewa 2022.02.03 | 11 | 2022.07.21 48 2022.11.23 5

42 Gampola 2022.02.14 | 30 | 2022.08.12 69 2022.11.09 43

43 Naula 2022.02.17 | 16 | 2022.07.26 55 2022.11.10 14

44 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.03.21 | 13 | 2022.07.27 49 2022.12.01 21

45 Walapane 2022.02.03 | 1 | 2022.08.12 41 2022.12.15 10

46 Senkadagala 2022.02.21 | 16 | 2022.07.27 42 2022.11.15 12

47 Yatinuwara 2022.02.03 | 22 | 2022.08.09 53 2022.11.15 4

48 Ampara 2022.03.15 | 13 | 2022.07.18 43

49 Seruwawila 2022.03.04 | 1 2022.07.14 36

50 Gomarankadawala 2022.02.28 | 4 2022.07.12 25

51 Kuchchaweli 2022.02.24 | 2

52 Eastern Trincomalee 20220228 | 3 | 20220714 | 29 | 20221109 | 4

53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.03.25 | 3 | 2022.07.14 49

54 Valachchena 2022.03.11 | 35 | 2022.08.01 73

55 Medirigiriya 2022.03.31 | 26 | 2022.07.22 56 2022.11.09 1
54 731 54 2604 45 573
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6.2 Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD] Prevention Program

This programme with the objective of educating the generation of youth about health and
sexually transmitted diseases is implemented by the National Youth Corps for all cadets
undergoing training at the Youth Corps Centers.

The program is conducted by the Regional/Provincial Health Bureaus under the guidance
of a personality development instructor or a career guidance officer trained in sexually

transmitted diseases.

1st Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch

Srl Youth Corps é § §
No. Province Training CerI:ter Event Date % Event Date % Event Date %
1 Katunayake 2022.03.02 | 1N 2022.09.15 | 43 | 20221110 | 13
2 Attanagalla 2022.03.04 | 21 | 2022.07.22 | 60 | 2022.11.09 | 20
3 Western Divulapitiya 2022.03.11 | 18 | 2022.07.14 | 47 | 2022.11.09 | 14
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.02.03 | 25 | 2022.0719 | 92 | 2022.11.09 | 28
5 Yakkala 2022.0215 | 21 | 2022.07.18 | 35 | 20221117 | 14
6 Bandarawela 2022.03.10 | 12 | 2022.08.18 | 36 | 2022.11.22 8
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.03.29 | 6 2022.07.14 | 34 | 2022.1.7

8 Thanamalwila 2022.08.26 | 17 | 2022.12.15

9 Uva Monaragala 2022.02.03 | 10 | 2022.07.21 | 95 | 2022.11.09 | 16
10 Wellawaya 2022.03.28 14.07.2022 | 50

1 Siyambalanduwa | 2022.02.24 2022.07.14 | 77 | 2022.12.06 5
12 Galle 2022.02.25 | 13 | 2022.08.04 | 49 | 202211.25 | 13
13 Neluwa 2022.02.25 | 13 | 2022.07.20 | 55 2022.11.11 3
14 Akuressa 2022.02.25 | 17 2022.07.12 61 | 2022.1.09 | 1
15 Weeraketiya 2022.02.25 | 6 2022.07.14 | 45 | 2022.11.04 8
16 Southern Suriyawewa 2022.02.25 | 8 2022.07.25 | 29 | 2022.11.27 8
17 Akmeemana 2022.02.25 | 12 | 2022.07.20 | 52 | 2022.11.25

18 Dikwella 2022.02.25 2022.07.19 | 14 2022.11.1

19 Lunugamvehera | 2022.02.25 2022.07.14 | 27 | 2022.11.09 | 13
20 Weerawila 2022.02.25 2022.08.05 | 30
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21 Nivithigala 2022.03.08 | 16 | 2022.07.28 | 32 | 16.11.2022 | 13
22 Galigamuwa 2022.02.25 | 3 2022.09.27 | 22 | 13.12.2022 | 15
23 Sabara- Embilipitiya 2022.02.03 | 20 | 2022.07.29 | 73 | 17.1.2022 | 31
24 gamuwa Kegalle 2022.02.03 | 23 | 2022.08.09 | 54 | 11.1.2022 17
25 Balangoda 2022.02.14 | 10 | 2022.07.26 | 36 | 11.12.2022 | 20
26 Dehiovita 2022.02.03 | 14 | 2022.08.23 | 72 | 09.11.2022 | 17
27 Mullaitivu 2022.02.03 | 16 | 2022.07.14 8
28 Northern Mannar 2022.03.15 2022.09.02 | 12 | 2022.11.09
29 Vauniya 2022.02.17 2022.0712 | 29 | 2022.11.09
30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.03.04 2022.07.12 | 28 | 2022.10.31
31 Wariyapola 2022.03.04 ( 31 | 2022.08.10 | 58 | 20221116 | 19
32 Mawathagama 2022.03.04 ( 12 | 2022.07.25 | 64 | 2022.11.03 | 17
33 North Panduwasnuwara | 2022.02.22 | 14 2022.07.14 91 2022.11.09 | 38
34 Western Dodangaslanda gggggggg 33 | 2022.07.20 | 54 | 2022.11.09 9
35 Nattandiya 2022.03.04 | 17 2022.09.06 | 22 | 2022.10.28 | 3
36 Wennappuwa 2022.03.04 | 13 | 2022.08.05 | 38 2022.11.1 1
37 Alawwa 2022.03.04| 8 2022.09.23 | 31
38 Kekirawa 2022.02.28 | 12 | 2022.08.05 | 128 | 2022.11.09 6
39 North Kalawewa 2022.03.09 | 10 | 2022.0715 | 86 | 2022.11.29 | 10
40 Central Anuradhapura 2022.03.01 | N 2022.07.20 | 21 | 2022.11.29
41 Galenbindunuwewa | 2022.03.11 10 2022.07.15 41 2022.11.23
42 Gampola 2022.02.17 | 30 | 2022.08.12 | 69 | 2022.11.09 | 43
43 Naula 2022.02.09 | 9 2022.07.26 | 55 | 20221110 | 14
44 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.02.23 | 17 2022.06.29 | 48 | 2022.11.09 | 23
45 Walapane 20220314 | 5 2022.07.20 | 43 | 2022.11.22 | 10
46 Senkadagala 2022.0201 | N 2022.07.14 | 40 | 20221115 | 12
47 Yatinuwara 2022.02.03 | 22 | 2022.08.09 | 53 | 2022.11.15 4
48 Ampara 2022.03.16 | 5 2022.07.27 | 43 | 2022.12.05 9
49 Seruwawila 2022.03.04 1 2022.07.14 36
50 Gomarankadawala | 2022.02.28 | 4 2022.07.12 25
51 Kuchchaweli 2022.02.25 | 2
52 Fastern Trincomalee | 2022.02.28 | 2 | 2022.0714 | 29 | 20221109 | 4
53 Dehiattakandiya | 2022.02.22 | 3 2022.07.14 | 49
54 Valachchena 2022.03.18 | 26 | 2022.08.01 | 83
55 Medirigiriya 2022.03.03 | 18 | 2022.07.15 | 52

Total 54 637 54 2573 45 578
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This program is implemented at the provincial level for the youth cadets of the Youth
Corps Training Centers in association with the health centers under the Ministry of Health,
Nutrition and Indigenous Medicine with a view to producing a healthy generation of youth.

This programme is conducted in collaboration with the Ministry of Health by the help of its
medical personnel.

1st Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
S 5 S
Srl. Province Yt.Ju.th Corps = = =
No. Training Center Event :S' Event :8 Event :S'
1 Katunayake 2022.03.02 12 2022.09.15 43 2022.11.10 13
2 Attanagalla 2022.03.04 | 22 2022.07.22 55 | 2022.11.09 20
3 Western Divulapitiya 2022.03.1 24 2022.07.14 47 | 2022.11.09 14
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.02.03 | 27 2022.07.19 88 2022.11.10 24
5 Yakkala 2022.02.15 21 2022.07.18 35 2022.11.10 15
6 Bandarawela 2022.03.10 15 2022.08.18 36 | 2022.11.22 8
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.03.29 10 2022.09.20 27 2022.11.17 9
8 Thanamalwila 2022.08.26 17 2022.12.12 5
9 tva Monaragala 20220203 | 12 | 202207.21 | 95 | 20221109 | 16
10 Wellawaya 2022.03.28 6 14.07.2022 50
n Siyambalanduwa 2022.02.24 7 2022.07.14 77 | 2022.12.06 5
12 Galle 2022.02.25 13 2022.07.27 52 | 2022.11.25 25
13 Neluwa 2022.02.25 16 2022.07.20 55 2022.11.1 3
14 Akuressa 2022.02.25 19 2022.07.12 61 2022.11.09 n
15 Weeraketiya 2022.02.25 6 2022.07.14 45 | 2022.11.04
16 Southern Suriyawewa 2022.02.25 10 2022.07.25 29 | 2022.1.27
17 Akmeemana 2022.02.25 12 2022.07.20 52 | 2022.11.25
18 Dikwella 2022.02.25 7 2022.07.19 14 2022.11.1
19 Lunugamvehera 2022.02.25 5 2022.07.14 27 2022.11.09 13
20 Weerawila 2022.02.25 3 2022.08.05 | 30
21 Nivithigala 2022.03.08 16 2022.07.28 32 16.11.2022 13
22 Galigamuwa 2022.02.14 6 2022.08.15 28 | 13.12.2022 15
23 Embilipitiya 2022.02.03 | 20 2022.07.14 72 17.11.2022 31
Sabaragamuwa
24 Kegalle 2022.02.14 23 2022.08.09 | 46 | 25.11.2022 16
25 Balangoda 2022.02.10 14 2022.08.25 27 | 21.12.2022 20
26 Dehiovita 2022.02.09 15 2022.08.31 il 10.11.2022 16
27 Mullaitivu 2022.02.03 16 2022.07.1 8
28 Northern Mannar 2022.03.15 3 2022.09.02 12 2022.11.09 8
29 Vauniya 17.02.2022 5 2022.07.12 29 | 2022.11.09 7
30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.03.04 2 2022.07.12 28 | 2022.10.31
31 Wariyapola 2022.03.04 31 2022.08.10 58 2022.11.16 19
32 North Western Mawathagama 2022-03-04 | 12 | 2022.07.25 | 64 | 2022.11.03 17
33 Panduwasnuwara | 2022.02.22 14 2022.07.14 91 2022.11.09 38
34 Dodangaslanda 2022.03.04 16 2022.07.20 54 | 2022.11.09 9
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35 Nattandiya 2022.03.04 (7 2022.09.06 |22 2022.10.28 |3
36 Wennappuwa 2022.03.04 (13 2022.08.05 |38 2022.11.11 n
37 Alawwa 2022.03.04 |8 2022.09.23 |31
38 North Central Kekirawa 2022.02.28 |12 2022.08.05 |128 |[2022.11.09 |6
39 Kalawewa 2022.03.06 |10 2022.07.15 86 2022.12.05 N
40 Anuradhapura 2022.02.11 |16 2022.07.1 38 2022.11.29 |6
41 Galenbindunu- 2022.02.03 [N 2022.07.15 41 2022.11.23 |5
wewa

42 | Central Gampola 2022.02.17 |30 2022.08.12 69 2022.11.09 |43
43 Naula 2022.02.09 |9 2022.07.26 55 20221110 |14
44 Nuwara Eliya 2022.02.23 |8 2022.06.29 |48 2022.11.09 |23
45 Walapane 2022.03.14 |6 2022.07.20 |43 2022.11.22 |10
46 Senkadagala 2022.02.01 |15 2022.07.27 |42 20221115 (12
47 Yatinuwara 2022.02.03 |22 2022.08.09 |53 20221115 |4
48 | Eastern Ampara 2022.03.16 |7 2022.07.27 43
49 Seruwawila 2022.03.04 (1 2022.07.14 36
50 Gomarankadawala 2022.02.28 |4 2022.07.12 25
51 Kuchchaweli 2022.02.25 |2
52 Trincomalee 2022.02.28 |3 2022.07.14 38 2022.11.09 |4
53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.02.22 |3 2022.07.14 49
54 Valachchena 2022.03.18 |35 2022.08.01 83
55 Medirigiriya 2022.02.25 |21 2022.07.15 52

Total 54 683 |54 2575 | 44 577
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6.4 Essay Competitions

The Essay Competitions are held at center level so as to represent all cadets. These
competitions will be held in Sinhala and Tamil media and a valuable certificate is on offer
to be awarded for the first, second and third places.
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I1st Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
Srl Youth Corps § § §
No. | Frovince Training Cellzter Event Date :g Event Date % Event Date :g
1 Katunayake 2022.01.31 18 2022.07.11 | 44 | 2022.10.28 | 13
2 Attanagalla 2022.02.02 | 27 2022.07.1 51 | 2022.11.03 21
3 Western Divulapitiya 2022.02.07 | 18 | 2022.07.12 | 73 | 2022.10.27 | 18
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.01.31 | 38 | 2022.07.15 | 79 | 2022.10.27 | 21
5 Yakkala 2022.02.08 | 18 2022.07.11 | 26 | 2022.11.03 17
6 Bandarawela 2022.0215 | 16 2022.07.11 | 54 | 20221114 9
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.02.18 9 2022.07.1 29 | 2022.11.28 8
8 Thanamalwila 2022.07.18 | 22 | 2022.12.08 5
9 Uva Monaragala 20220223 | N 2022.07.11 | 77 | 2022.11.01 7
10 Wellawaya 2022.02.14 | 10 11.07.2022 | 52
1 Siyambalanduwa | 2022.02.23 | 10 2022.07.1 68 [ 2022.12.16 5
12 Galle 2022.02.18 | 13 2022.07.12 | 46 | 20221114 13
13 Neluwa 2022.02.23 | 17 | 2022.07.27 | 42 | 2022.10.27 3
14 Akuressa 2022.02.18 | 19 2022.07.11 | 60 | 2022.10.27 | 12
15 Weeraketiya 2022.02.21 | 10 2022.07.11 | 45 | 2022.11.23 8
16 Southern Suriyawewa 2022.02.28 9 2022.07.20 | 31 2022111 8
17 Akmeemana 2022.02.14 | 12 | 2022.07.14 | 48 | 2022.11.10 4
18 Dikwella 2022'02'01 2022.07.21 | 16 2022.1.21 7
19 Lunugamvehera | 2022.03.03 2022.07.11 | 29 | 2022.11.24 | 10
20 Weerawila 2022.02.28 2022.07.11 | 35
21 Nivithigala 03.03.2022 | 27 | 2022.07.25 | 35 | 27.10.2022 | 18
22 Galigamuwa 2022.02.28 3 2022.07.11 | 29 | 28.10.2022 | 20
23 Sabara Embilipitiya 2022.02.23 | 20 | 2022.07.11 | 77 11.11.2022 29
24 gamuwa Kegalle 2022.02.24 | 27 | 2022.08.05 | 45 | 31.10.2022 | 20
25 Balangoda 2022.02.08 | 14 2022.07.11 | 26 | 23.10.2022 | 29
26 Dehiovita 2022.03.14 | 17 2022.07.11 | 59 | 08.11.2022 | 17




64 | ANNUAL REPORT -2022

27 Mullaitivu 18.02.2022 | 18 2022.07.11 8
28 Northern Mannar 15.02.2022 5 2022.07.20 | 16 | 2022.10.27 8
29 Vauniya 14.02.2022 5 2022.07.1 29 | 2022.10.27 1
30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.02.28 7 2022.07.18 | 29 | 2022.11.03 8
31 Wariyapola 2022.02.21 | 45 | 2022.07.18 | 64 | 2022.10.28 | 25
32 Mawathagama 2022.02.17 10 2022.07.19 | 50 | 2022.10.27 | 16
33 North Panduwasnuwara | 2022.02.18 | 22 2022.07.1 79 | 2022.10.27 | 34
34 Western Dodangaslanda 2022.02.10 10 2022.0712 50 | 2022.10.27 1
35 Nattandiya 2022.02.28 9 2022..07.18 | 24 | 2022.10.31 6
36 Wennappuwa 2022.02.03 | 15 | 2022.07.20 | 39 | 2022.10.31 14
37 Alawwa 2022.02.23 | 12 | 2022.07.20 | 54 | 2022.11.08 2
38 Kekirawa 2022.02.21 15 2022.07.11 89 | 2022.10.20 7
39 North Kalawewa 2022.02.21 6 2022.07.11 80 |2022-12-05|
40 Central Anuradhapura 2022.02.10 12 2022.07.12 | 42 2022.111 7
41 Galenbindunuwewa | 2022.02.28 8 2022.07.11 24 | 20221115 4
42 Gampola 2022.02.15 | 30 2022.07.11 71 | 2022.10.27 | 49
43 Naula 2022.02.21 21 2022.07.18 | 64 | 2022.1.14 19
44 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.02.10 14 | 2022.07.20 | 47 | 2022.11.27 18
45 Walapane 2022.01.31 n 2022.07.11 32 | 2022.10.31 14
46 Senkadagala 2022.01.31 15 | 2022.07.08 | 37 | 2022.10.27 | 12
47 Yatinuwara 2022.01.31 22 | 2022.07.22 | 43 | 2022.11.10 4
48 Eastern Ampara 2022.02.25 | 13 2022.07.11 29 | 2022.11.18 9
49 Seruwawila 2022.02.23 2 2022.07.11 40
50 Gomarankadawala | 2022.02.23 4 2022.07.19 | 30
51 Kuchchaweli 2022.02.23 2
52 Trincomalee 2022.02.23 3 2022.07.11 33 | 2022.11.27 3
53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.02.14 3 2022.07.11 38
54 Valachchena 2022.02.22 16 2022.07.18 | 85
55 Medirigiriya 2022.03.04 | 29 2022.07.11 51

Total 54 768 54 2475 46 614
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6.9 Dehate Contests

The debate contests are organized by upholding the freedom of expression of the youth
cadets who make their way to follow the leadership and personality development training
course of the Youth Corps and affording them an opportunity to put their capacity of

logical reasoning literacy to test. These contests are worked off at the center level and the
selection of teams is made at the class level. The number of members who can compete in
one team is 04. Certificates will be awarded to the winning team. These encounters are also
conducted in the media of Sinhala and Tamil.

Ist Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
5 s 5
Srl. Province Youth Corps ‘; *‘_-'_U *z
No. Training Center | Event Date = Event Date 2 | Event Date =
1 Katunayake 2022.01.31 18 2022.11.07 44 2022.10.28 13
2 Attanagalla 2022.02.02 27 2022.07.1 51 2022.11.03 21
3 Western Divulapitiya 2022.02.17 26 2022.07.12 73 2022.10.27 18
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.01.31 38 2022.07.15 79 2022.10.27 21
5 Yakkala 2022.02.08 18 2022.07.20 34 2022.11.03 17
6 Bandarawela 2022.03.04 16 2022.07.1 54 2022.11.14 9
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.02.18 9 2022.07.12 33 2022.11.30 10
8 Thanamalwila 2022.07.18 22 2022.12.08 5
9 v Monaragala | 20220223 | 8 | 20220711 | 77 | 2022.11.01
10 Wellawaya 2022.02.15 10 11.07.2022 52
n Siyambalanduwa 2022.02.23 10 2022.07.1 68 2022.12.16 5
12 Galle 2022.02.18 13 2022.07.12 46 2022.11.14 13
13 Neluwa 2022.02.23 17 2022.07.27 42
14 Akuressa 2022.02.18 19 2022.07.1 60 2022.10.27 12
15 Weeraketiya 2022.02.21 10 2022.07.1 40 2022.11.24 8
16 Southern Suriyawewa 2022.02.28 9 2022.07.20 31 2022.11.1
17 Akmeemana 2022.02.14 12 2022.07.14 48 2022.11.10 4
18 Dikwella 2022'02'01 8 2022.07.21 16 2022.11.21 7
19 Lunugamvehera 2022.03.03 7 2022.07.1 29 2022.11.24 10
20 Weerawila 2022'02'28 8 2022.07.1 35
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21 Nivithigala 03.03.2022 27 2022.07.25 35 27.10.2022 18
22 Galigamuwa 2022.02.24 2 2022.07.12 33 28.10.2022 20
23 Sabara Embilipitiya 2022.02.23 20 2022.07.1 77 11.11.2022 29
24 gamuwa Kegalle 2022.02.24 27 2022.08.05 45 28.10.2022 18
25 Balangoda 2022.02.28 16 2022.07.18 48 31.10.2022 31
26 Dehiovita 2022.03.16 14 2022.07.1 59 08.11.2022 17
27 Mullaitivu 21.02.2022 17 2022.07.1 8
28 | Northern Mannar 15.02.2022 5 2022.07.20 16 2022.10.27 8
29 Vauniya 18.02.2022 4 2022.07.1 29 2022.10.27 n
30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.02.28 6 2022.07.18 29 2022.11.03 8
31 Wariyapola 2022.02.21 45 2022.07.18 64 2022.10.28 25
32 Mawathagama 2022.02.17 10 2022.07.19 50 2022.10.27 16
33 North Panduwasnuwara 2022.02.18 22 2022.07.1 79 2022.10.27 34
34 Western Dodangaslanda 2022.02.10 10 2022.07.12 50 2022.10.27 n
35 Nattandiya 2022.02.28 9 2022..07.18 24 2022.10.31 6
36 Wennappuwa 2022.02.03 15 2022.07.22 40
37 Alawwa 2022.02.23 12 2022.08.23 34
38 Kekirawa 2022.02.21 15 2022.07.12 131 2022.10.20 7
39 North Kalawewa 2022.02.21 6 2022.07.1 80 2022111 8
40 Central Anuradhapura 2022.02.10 12 2022.07.12 42 2022.12.29 n
41 Galenbindunuwewa 2022.02.18 8 2022.07.14 45 2022.11.25 4
42 Gampola 2022.02.15 30 2022.07.1 il 2022.10.27 49
43 Naula 2022.02.21 21 2022.07.18 64 2022.11.14 19
44 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.02.10 14 2022.07.20 47 2022.11.27 18
45 Walapane 2022.02.11 13 2022.07.1 32 2022.10.31 14
46 Senkadagala 2022.01.31 15 2022.07.08 37 2022.10.27 12
47 Yatinuwara 2022.01.31 22 2022.07.22 43
48 Ampara 2022.02.25 13 2022.07.1 29 2022.11.18 9
49 Seruwawila 2022.02.23 2 2022.07.1 40
50 Gomarankadawala 2022.02.23 4 2022.07.19 30
51 Kuchchaweli 2022.02.23 2
52 Fastern Trincomalee 2022.02.23 3 2022.07.1 33 2022.11.27 3
53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.02.23 33 2022.07.1 38
54 Valachchena 2022.02.22 12 2022.07.18 85
55 Medirigiriya 2022.03.14 33 2022.07.1 51

Total 54 769 54 2552 42 594
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The quiz competitions are organized with a view to enhancing the general knowledge
and extracurricular awareness of the young cadets who join the Youth Corps and also, to
identifying young men and women with special talents at the provincial and national levels.
These contests are held at the center level. The number of contestants per team is 04 and
the certificates are awarded to the winners.

1st Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
S 5 5
Srl. . Youth Corps Training = = =
No. Province Center Event Date -% Event Date % Event Date %
& & g
1 Katunayake 2022.01.31 | 18 | 2022.11.07 | 44 |2022.10.28( 13
2 Attanagalla 2022.02.02 | 27 | 2022.07.1 91 ([ 2022.11.03 | 21
3 | Western Divulapitiya 2022.02.07 | 18 | 2022.07.12 | 73 |2022.10.27 | 18
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.01.31 | 38 | 2022.07.15 | 79 |2022.10.27 | 21
5 Yakkala 2022.02.08 | 18 | 2022.07.20 | 34 | 2022.1.03 | 17
6 Bandarawela 2022.02.15 | 16 | 2022.07.11 | 54 | 2022114 | 9
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.0218 | 9 | 20220711 | 29 |202211.28 | 8
8 Thanamalwila 2022.07.18 | 22 |202212.08| 5
9 Uva Monaragala 2022.02.23 ( 11 | 2022.07.11 | 77 | 2022.1.01 | 7
10 Wellawaya 2022.0215 | 9 | 11.07.2022 | 52
[l Siyambalanduwa |2022.02.23 | 10 | 2022.07.11 | 68 | 20221216 | 5
12 Galle 2022.02.18 | 13 | 2022.07.12 | 46 | 2022.11.14 | 13
13 Neluwa 2022.02.23 | 17 | 2022.07.27 | 42 |2022.10.27( 3
14 Akuressa 2022.02.18 | 19 | 2022.07.11 | 60 |2022.10.27 | 12
15 Weeraketiya 2022.02.21 | 10 | 2022.07.11 | 40 | 20221123 | 8
16 | Southern Suriyawewa 2022.02.28 ( 9 | 2022.07.20| 31 2022111 | 8
17 Akmeemana 2022.02.14 | 12 | 2022.0715 | 46 | 20221110 | 4
18 Dikwella 2022.02.01 | 8 | 2022.07.21 | 16 | 2022.1.21 | 7
19 Lunugamvehera |2022.03.03| 7 | 2022.07.11 | 29 | 2022.11.24 | 10
20 Weerawila 2022.02.25( 4 | 2022.07.11 | 35
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21 Nivithigala 2022.03.03 | 27 | 2022.07.20 | 25 |27.10.2022| 18
22 Galigamuwa 2022.02.24( 2 | 2022.07.11 | 29 |28.10.2022( 20
23 | Sabara- Embilipitiya 2022.02.23 | 20 | 2022.07.11 | 77 | 1.1.2022 | 29
24 | gamuwa Kegalle 2022.02.24 | 27 | 2022.08.04| 64 |28.10.2022| 18
25 Balangoda 2022.02.15 | 12 | 2022.07.25 | 44 | 03.11.2022 | 25
26 Dehiovita 2022.03.16 | 14 | 2022.07.11 | 59 | 08.11.2022 | 17
27 Mullaitivu 2022.02.24 | 14 | 11/07/2022 | 8
28 | Northern Mannar 2022.0215 | 5 |2022.07.20| 16 |2022.10.27| 8
29 Vauniya 2022.0214 | 5 | 20220711 | 29 (202210.27| N
30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.02.28 6 | 2022.0712 | 29 |202211.03| 8
31 Wariyapola 2022.02.21 | 45 | 2022.07.18 | 64 |2022.10.28 | 25
32 Mawathagama 2022.02.10 | 10 | 2022.07.19 | 50 |[2022.10.27 | 16
33 North Panduwasnuwara | 2022.02.18 | 22 | 2022.07.11 | 79 |2022.10.27 | 34
34 | Western Dodangaslanda 2022.02.10 | 10 | 2022.07.12 | 50 (2022.10.27| N
35 Nattandiya 2022.02.28 | 9 |2022.07.18 | 24 |20221.22| 9
36 Wennappuwa 2022.02.03 | 15 | 2022.07.20 | 39 | 2022.10.31| 14
37 Alawwa 2022.02.23 | 12 | 2022.08.23 | 34
38 Kekirawa 2022.02.21 | 15 | 2022.07.12 | 131 | 2022.10.20| 7
39 North Kalawewa 2022.02.21 | 6 | 2022.07.11 | 80 |2022-1-11| 8
40 | Central Anuradhapura 2022.02.10 | 12 | 2022.07.14 | 35 |[2022.12.27| 10
41 Galenbindunuwewa | 2022.02.21 | 9 | 2022.0715 | 41 | 20221115 | 4
42 Gampola 2022.02.15 | 30 | 2022-07-11| 71 |2022.10.27 | 49
43 Naula 2022.02.21 | 21 | 2022.07.18 | 64 | 20221114 | 19
L4 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.02.10 | 14 | 2022.07.20 | 47 | 2022.11.27 | 18
45 Walapane 2022.01.31 | 11 | 2022.07.11 | 32 | 2022.10.31| 14
46 Senkadagala 2022.01.31 | 15 | 2022.07.08 | 37 |2022.10.27 | 12
47 Yatinuwara 2022.01.31 | 22 | 2022.07.22 | 43 | 20221110 | 4
48 Ampara 2022.02.25( 13 | 2022.07.11 | 29 | 20221118 | 9
49 Seruwawila 2022.02.23 ( 2 | 2022.07.11 | 40
50 Gomarankadawala | 2022.02.23 | 4 | 2022.07.19 | 30
51 Kuchchaweli 2022.02.23 | 2
Eastern -

52 Trincomalee 2022.02.23 ( 3 | 2022.07.11 | 33 | 20221.27 | 3
53 Dehiattakandiya | 2022.02.11 | 3 | 2022.07.11 | 38
54 Valachchena 2022.02.22 | 16 | 2022.07.18 | 85
55 Medirigiriya 2022.03.16 | 31 | 2022.07.11 51

Total 54 757 54 2535 45 609
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6.1 Disaster Management Program

With the intention of developing the leadership skills of the young men and women of

the country in an emergency situation of disaster, the Youth Corps joining hands with the
Ministry of Disaster Management make it a point to conduct special one-day programmes
for the youth cadets. This program is implemented in 25 districts covering all the centers
and one representative center will be selected for each of those 25 districts. At the end of
the program, the Ministry of Disaster Management will also award a valuable certificate to

the participating cadets.

1st Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
s S S
Srl. Province Youth Corps Training p p Event p
No. Center Event Date §' Event Date § Date §
o o o
1 Katunayake 2022.02.03 | 12 | 2022.02.07 | 44 | 2022.11.03 | 16
2 Attanagalla 2022.02.17 | 16 | 2022-07-12 | 54 | 2022.11.04 | 23
3 Western Divulapitiya 2022.02.14 | 17 | 2022.08.26 | 70 | 20221104 | 7
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.02.09 | 24 | 2022.07.20 91 2022.11.04 | 24
5 Yakkala 2022.02.09 | 23 | 2022.07.12 32 | 2022.11.04 | 18
6 Bandarawela 2022.02.16 | 16 | 2022.08.18 36 2022.11.10 | 10
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.03.31 | 10 | 2022.09.06 51 20221103 | 9
8 Uva Thanamalwila 2022.08.29 14 | 2022.12.15
9 Monaragala 2022.02.01 | 14 | 2022.09.15 46 | 2022.11.08 | 14
10 Wellawaya 2022.02.10 12.07.2022 59
ll Siyambalanduwa 2022.02.22 2022.07.12 69 | 20221216 | 5
12 Galle 2022.02.24 | 12 | 2022.07.26 52 | 2022.11.02 | 15
13 Neluwa 2022.02.24 | 17 | 2022.07.21 40 | 20221215 | 3
14 Akuressa 2022.02.24 | 13 | 2022.07.14 46 2022.11.11 | 12
15 Weeraketiya 2022.02.24 | 8 | 2022.08.17 42
16 Southern Suriyawewa 2022.02.24 | 7 | 2022.08.08 30 2022.11.10
17 Akmeemana 2022.02.24 | 10 | 2022.07.18 47 | 2022.11.02
18 Dikwella 2022.02.24 | 10 | 2022.07.22 16 2022.11.09
19 Lunugamvehera 2022.02.24 2022.07.12 28 |202212.23| 10
20 Weerawila 2022.02.24 2022.07.12 27
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21 Nivithigala 08.03.2022 | 23 | 2022.07.21 27 | 2022.11.03 | 22

22 Galigamuwa 2022.03.18 | 4 | 2022.09.15 15 2022.10.11 | 22

23 Sabara- Embilipitiya 2022.02.22 | 20 | 2022.07.12 78 2022.11.10 | 33

24 gamuwa Kegalle 2022.02.01 | 25 | 2022.08.08 60 20221114 | 16

25 Balangoda 2022.02.28 | 15 | 2022.07.15 48 | 2022.11.03 | 25

26 Dehiovita 2022.02.08 | 14 | 2022.08.24 | 84 | 2022.11.04 | 18

27 Mullaitivu 01.02.2022 | 17 | 12.07.2022 8

28 Northern Mannar 28.02.2022 | 2 | 29.07.2022 10 2022.11.10 8

29 Vauniya 15.02.2022 | 5 | 14.07.2022 28 | 20221103 | 9

30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.03.02 | 7 | 2022.07.21 28 2022.11.11 8

31 Wariyapola 2022.03.02 | 36 | 2022.08.10 58 2022.11.10 | 23

32 Mawathagama 2022.03.02 | 12 | 2022.07.28 51 2022.11.18 | 17

33 North Panduwasnuwara 2022.02.21 | 20 | 2022.07.15 96 2022.11.03 | 36

34 Western Dodangaslanda ggggggzg 16 | 2022.07.29 24 | 2022103 | N

35 Nattandiya 2022.03.02 | 9 | 2022.09.14 19 20221118 | 9

36 Wennappuwa 2022.03.02 | 10 | 2022.09.23 24 2022.11.16 | 14

37 Alawwa 2022.03.02 | 7 | 2022.09.14 34

38 Kekirawa 2022.02.22 | 16 | 2022.07.12 131 | 2022.11.02 | 7

39 North Kalawewa 2022.02.24 | 8 | 2022.07.10 83 [ 202211.03 | 8

40 Central Anuradhapura 2022.02.24 | 13 | 2022.09.09 48 | 2022.11.03 | 9

41 Galenbindunuwewa | 2022.02.01 | 8 | 2022.09.21 T 2022.11.11 5

42 Gampola 2022.02.18 | 30 | 2022.07.12 110 | 2022.11.03 | 49

43 Naula 2022.02.22 | 16 | 2022.07.1 32 | 2022.11.04 | 12

L4 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.0211 | 11 | 2022.07.28 49 2022.11.15 | 26

45 Walapane 2022.03.15 | 11 | 2022.07.12 47 | 202212.29 | 8

46 Senkadagala 2022.02.28 | 16 | 2022.08.01 38 | 20221103 | ™

47 Yatinuwara 2022.02.01 | 21 | 2022.07.27 62 | 20221103 | 4

48 Ampara 2022.03.09 | 14 | 2022.07.26 44

49 Seruwawila 2022.03.16 | 4 | 2022.07.12 48

50 Gomarankadawala | 2022.02.22 | 4 | 2022.09.05 21

51 Kuchchaweli 2022.02.24 | 2

Eastern -

52 Trincomalee 2022.03.02 | 3 | 2022.07.20 34 | 20221103 | 4

53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.02.07 | 3 | 2022.07.12 36

54 Valachchena 2022.03.30 | 35 | 2022.07.27 78

55 Medirigiriya 2022.03.31 | 28 | 2022.07.18 64 | 202211.03 | 1
Total 54 718 54 2582 44 607
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6.8 Sport Meets (Center Level)

Sport events of Volleyball (Women / Men), Six-over Cricket (Women / Men), Netball
(Women), Football (Men), Elle (Women / Men), Kabadi (Women / Men), 100m Sprint (Women
/ Men) , 400m x 4 (Women / Men), 100m x 4 (Women / Men), 200m (Women / Men), 400m
(Women / Men) and 800m (Women / Men) are worked off in these competitions. Certificates
are awarded to the first, second and third places for the athletics and team events.

Ist Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
S 5 S
Srl. . Youth Corps Trainin = = =
No. | Province Cerﬁter ’ Event Date % Event Date % Event Date %
1 Katunayake 2022.07.29 | 42 |2022.12.09| 1
2 Attanagalla 2022.07-29 | 61 | 20221118 | 21
3 | Western Divulapitiya 2022.07.15 | 78 | 2022.11.08 | 14
4 Bulathsinhala 2022-07-21| 93 | 2022.11.29 | 23
5 Yakkala 2022.07.29 | 69 | 2022.11.23 | 15
6 Bandarawela 2022.07.27 | 50 |2022.12.30( 4
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.08.05 | 53 |[2022.12.02| 8
8 Thanamalwila 2022.07.27 | 21 | 20221130 | 5
g | V@ Monaragala 2022.07.29 | 88 | 20221110 | 13
10 Wellawaya 2022.07.16 | 56
1 Siyambalanduwa 2022.07.29 | 84 (2023.01.03| 5
12 Galle 2022.07.29 | 49
13 Neluwa 2022.07.29 | 50
14 Akuressa 2022.07.29 | 64 | 2022.11.04 | 13
15 Weeraketiya 2022.07.29 | 50
16 | Southern Suriyawewa 2022.07.29 | 29 |202211.25| 9
17 Akmeemana 2022.07.29 | 47
18 Dikwella 2022.07.29 | 27 | 2022.11.25 | 8
19 Lunugamvehera 2022.08.24 | 33
20 Weerawila 2022.07.29 | 41
21 © Nivithigala 2022.07.29 | 24 | 2022.11.04 | 17
22 % Galigamuwa 2022.07.29 | 32 | 2022.11.04 | 24
23 g Embilipitiya 2022.07.29 | 73 | 2022.11.25 | 31
24 g Kegalle 2022.07.29 | 62
25 e Balangoda 2022.07.29 | 40 | 2022.11.04 | 24
26 @ Dehiovita 2022.7.29 | 80 | 2022.11.09 | 17
27 Mullaitivu 15.02.2022 | 18 | 2022.07.29 | 8
28 | Northern Mannar 2022.07.28 | 15 | 2022.11.04 | 2
29 Vauniya 2022.08.10 | 35
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30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.07.29 | 26 | 20221104 | 7
31 Wariyapola 2022.03.15 | 40 | 2022.07.29 | 65 | 2022.11.23 | 21
32 Mawathagama 2022.03.21 | 23 | 2022.07.29 | 43 | 2022.11.04 | 13
33 North Panduwasnuwara 2022.07.29 | 96 | 2022.11.04 | 32
34 | Western Dodangaslanda 2022.07.14 | 42 | 2022.11.25 | 12
35 Nattandiya 2022.07.29 | 26
36 Wennappuwa 2022.07.29 | 36 |2022.11.04| 14
37 Alawwa 2022.07.29 | 44
38 Kekirawa 2022.03.09 | 13 | 2022.07.29 | 120
39 North Kalawewa 2022.03.23 | 12 | 2022.07.14 | 84
40 | Central Anuradhapura 2022.07.19 | 48
41 Galenbindunuwewa | 2022.03.25 | 8 | 2022.07.29 | 47
42 Gampola 2022.07.29 | 106 | 2022.11.04 | 48
43 Naula 2022.07.29 | 54 | 20221215 | 17
44 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.07.29 | 49 | 20221104 | 21
45 Walapane 2022.07.29 | 44 | 20221110 | 14
46 Senkadagala 2022.07.29 | 44 | 2022.11.04| 8
47 Yatinuwara 2002.07.29 | 52 | 2022.11.04| 4
48 Ampara 2022.07.29 | 43
49 Seruwawila 2022.07.29 | 35
50 Gomarankadawala 2022.09.02 | 25
91 Kuchchaweli
Eastern -

52 Trincomalee 2022.07.29 | 31
53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.07.15 | 38
54 Valachchena 2022.07.29 | 76
55 Medirigiriya 2022.07.20 | 68

Total 6 114 54 2796 31 475
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6.9 Arts Festival - National Level

The Annual Arst Festival and Award Ceremony - 2022 of the Youth Corps was held on
17.01.2023 at Bandaranaike Memorial International Conference Hall. Here at this festival,
certificates and awards were given away to the trainees who had excelled in Life Skills
Courses, Information Technology and English courses at the National Youth Corps Training
Centers established throughout the island, and the trainees who had excelled in training
courses at various professional training institutes. The Instructors and officials of the
training centers were also appreciated.

All the cultural features on stage at this festival were presented by the advisory board of
the Youth Corps and the trainees themselves.

This event was brought on stage with the intention of celebrating the 20th anniversary of
the Youth Corps, showcasing the artistic skills of the trainees and also, to appreciate the
trainees and their mentors, bringing them into limelight.

Program Date Venue Participation

Bandaranaike Memorial 1500
International Conference Hall

Paurushabimanie 2023.01.17
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6.10 Arts Festival - Provincial Level

The Arts Festival is held at the provincial level with the participation of young male and
female cadets.

Srl. No. Province Na?:ar}?,:rr;%t:n(t::rrps Participation
1 Katunayake
2 Attanagalla
3 Western Divulapitiya 76
4 Bulathsinhala
5 Yakkala
12 Galle
13 Neluwa
14 Akuressa
15 Weeraketiya
16 Southern Suriyawewa 139
17 Akmeemana
18 Dikwella
19 Lunugamvehera
20 Weerawila
21 Nivithigala
22 Galigamuwa
22 Sabaragamuwa En;l:gl]!)lllt;ya 33
25 Balangoda
26 Dehiovita
Total 248
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6.11 Arts Festival - Genter Level

The artistic talents of the young male and female cadets will be showcased through the Arts
Festival which will also be held at the center level.

st Batch 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
Srl National Youth Corps § § §
No. | Frovince Training Center i Event Date % Event Date :g Event Date %
1 Katunayake 2022.07.29 | 42 | 20221209 | M
2 Attanagalla 2022.07.29 | 61 | 20221118 | 21
3 | Western Divulapitiya 2022.0715 | 78 | 2022.11.08 | 14
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.07.21 | 93 | 2022.11.29 | 23
5 Yakkala 2022.07.29 | 69 | 202211.23 | 15
6 Bandarawela 2022.07.27 | 50 | 20221230 | 4
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.08.05 | 53 | 20221202 8
8 Uva Thanamalwila 2022.07.27 | 21 | 2022130 | 5
9 Monaragala 2022.07.29 | 88 | 2022.11.10 | 13
10 Wellawaya 2022.07.16 | 56
1 Siyambalanduwa 2022.07.29 | 84 | 2023.01.03| 5
12 Galle 2022.07.29 | 49
13 Neluwa 2022.07.29 | 50
14 Akuressa 2022.07.29 | 64 | 2022.11.04 | 13
15 ?, Weeraketiya 2022.07.29 | 50
16 :‘:5, Suriyawewa 2022.07.29 | 29 | 20221.25 | 9
17 a Akmeemana 2022.07.29 | 47
18 Dikwella 2022.07.29 | 27 | 202211.25 | 8
19 Lunugamvehera 2022.08.24 | 33
20 Weerawila 2022.07.29 | 41
21 © Nivithigala 2022.07.29 | 24 | 04.11.2022 | 17
22 % Galigamuwa 2022.07.29 | 32 | 04.11.2022 | 24
23 § Embilipitiya 2022.07.29 | 73 | 25.11.2022 | 31
24 g Kegalle 2022.07.29 | 62
25 s Balangoda 2022.7.29 | 40 | 04.11.2022 | 24
26 < Dehiovita 2022.7.29 | 80 | 09.11.2022 | 17
27 c Mullaitivu 15.02.2022 | 18 | 2022.07.29 | 8
28 E Mannar 2022.07.28 | 15 | 2022.11.04 | 2
29 = Vauniya 10.08.2022 | 35
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30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.07.29 | 26 | 2022.1.04 | 7
31 Wariyapola 2022.03.15 | 40 | 2022.07.29 | 65 | 2022.11.23 | 21
32 Mawathagama 2022.03.21 | 23 | 2022.07.29 | 43 | 2022.11.04 | 13
33 North Panduwasnuwara 2022.07.29 | 96 | 2022.11.04 | 32
34 | Western Dodangaslanda 2022.07.14 | 42 | 2022.11.25 | 12
35 Nattandiya 2022.07.29 | 26
36 Wennappuwa 2022.07.29 | 36 | 2022.11.04 | 14
37 Alawwa 2022.07.29 | 44
38 Kekirawa 2022.03.09 | 13 | 2022.07.29 | 120
39 North Kalawewa 2022.03.23 | 12 | 2022.07.14 | 84
40 | Central | Apuradhapura 2022.07.19 | 48
41 Galenbindunuwewa | 2022.03.25| 8 | 2022.07.29 | 47
42 Gampola 2022.07.29 | 106 | 2022.11.04 | 48
43 Naula 2022.07.29 | 54 | 20221215 | 17
44 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.07.29 | 49 | 2022.11.04 | 21
45 Walapane 2022.07.29 | 44 | 20221110 | 14
46 Senkadagala 2022.07.29 | 44 | 20221104 | 8
47 Yatinuwara 2002.07.29 | 52 | 202211.04 | 4
48 Ampara 2022.07.29 | 43
49 Seruwawila 2022.07.29 | 35
50 Gomarankadawala 2022.09.02 | 25
91 Kuchchaweli
Eastern -

52 Trincomalee 2022.07.29 | 31
53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.07.15 | 38
54 Valachchena 2022.07.29 | 76
55 Medirigiriya 2022.07.20 | 68

Total 6 N4 54 2796 31 475




ANNUAL REPORT - 2022 | 77

6.12 Passing out Ceremonies — National / Gentre

At the end of the training course held under the respective stages of the Youth Corps
Training Centers, certificates are distributed to the trainees and the passing out event is
held at a ceremonial note. Here in this event, with the accompaniement of the National Youth
Corps band, passing out parades are held at the provincial level and a certificate awarding
ceremony will also be held. An award of merit for the best and most talented trainee too is

given away at these ceremonies.

Ist & 2nd Batch 3rd Batch
5 5
Srl. Province Nation_a! Youth Corps = =
No. Training Center EventDate | -5 | EventDate | 5
1 Katunayake 2022.10.20 69 2023.03.01 | 15
2 Attanagalla 2022.10.27 91 2023.03.01 | 10
3 Western Divulapitiya 2022.10.18 99 2023.03.01 | 10
4 Bulathsinhala 2022.10.27 | 136 | 2023.03.01 | 21
5 Yakkala 2022.10.28 | 64 | 2023.03.01 | 14
6 Bandarawela 2022.11.01 81 2023.03.08 | 12
7 Mahiyanganaya 2022.10.20 79 | 2023.03.09 | 13
8 Uva Thanamalwila 2022.10.28 19 2023.02.24 | 28
9 Monaragala 2022.10.27 | 13 | 2023.03.01 | 12
10 Wellawaya 2022.10.28 | 64
1 Siyambalanduwa 2022.10.27 | 100
12 Galle 2022.10.31 68 2022.10.31 | 53
13 Neluwa 2022.111 69 2022.111 41
14 Akuressa 2022.11.28 91
15 Weeraketiya 2022.11.16 64
16 Southern Suriyawewa 2022.11.01 50 2022.11.01 34
17 Akmeemana 2022.10.18 64 2022.10.18 | 50
18 Dikwella 2022.10.31 45 2022.10.31 | 35
19 Lunugamvehera 2022.10.06 | 36 | 2022.10.06 | 35
20 Weerawila 2022.10.27 42 2022.10.27 | 42
21 Nivithigala 2022.10.26 63 2023.03.01 4
22 Galigamuwa 2022.10.26 37 | 2023.02.23 | 10
23 Embilipitiya 2022.10.28 | 103 | 2023.02.28 | 5
Sabaragamuwa
24 Kegalle 2022.10.26 | 108 | 2023.02.27 | 13
25 Balangoda 2022.10.27 68
26 Dehiovita 2022.10.28 | 104 | 2023.02.27 5
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27 Mullaitivu 2022.11.02 29
28 Northern Mannar 2022.11.15 20
29 Vauniya 2022.11.02 43 | 2023.01.04 | 8
30 Kuliyapitiya 2022.10.21 35 | 2023.03.22 | 2
31 Wariyapola 2022.10.27 | 121 | 2023.03.28 | 12
32 Mawathagama 2022.10.27 | 98 | 2023.03.31 9
33 Panduwasnuwara 2022.10.28 | 133 | 2023.01.04 5
35, | North Western m  ngaslanda | 20221031 | 79 | 20230310 | 6
35 Nattandiya 2022.10.21 39 | 2023.03.08 | 19
36 Wennappuwa 2022.10.27 57 | 2023.03.09 | 9
37 Alawwa 2022.10.28 | 59 | 2023.03.17 | 28
38 Kekirawa 2022.11.03 | 202 | 2023.03.10 | 42
39 Kalawewa 2022.11.09 | 101 | 2023.02.14 7
4o | North Central o radhapura | 20221110 | 73 | 20230210 | 30
41 Galenbindunuwewa | 2022.11.02 A
42 Gampola 2022.10.20 | 141 | 2023.01.23 | 44
43 Naula 2022.11.02 84 | 2023.02.24 | 19
44 Central Nuwara Eliya 2022.10.21 60 | 2023.03.15 | 28
45 Walapane 2022.11.04 63 | 2023.02.27 | 25
46 Senkadagala 2022.11.02 68 | 2023.02.17 | 32
47 Yatinuwara 2022.10.27 84 | 2023.02.08 | 19
48 Ampara 2022.10.31 60 | 2023.03.17 7
49 Seruwawila 2022.11.15 49
50 Gomarankadawala 2022.11.10 32
91 Kuchchaweli
Eastern -

52 Trincomalee 2022.11.04 43
53 Dehiattakandiya 2022.11.02 60
54 Valachchena 2022.11.24 | 140
55 Medirigiriya 2022.11.09 m

Total 54 3587 40 813
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1.1 Cadre Management

- Approved Cadre ACtl(J;[:ZC;)‘dre
Srl. s € > s >
No. Post Salary Code 08;, % g S G 3 S G
=) © = o © = o
8 E|s| | E| &S| &
gle|e|&|°|e
1 Director HM 1-3 1 1 1
2 ,I’;\::ll::g)al Director (Administration & HM 1-1 1 . 1
3 gg\c/iletlls;sqlealtr)ector (Training & HM 1-1 . . .
4 Assistant Director (Finance) MM1-1 1 1 1
5 Assistant Director (Administration) MM1-1 1 1
6 Assistant Director (Training) MM1-1 1 2 2
7 Assistant Director (Development) MM1-1 1 1 1
8 Assistant Director (Provincial) MM1-1 Fixed 9 6
9 Council Secretary / Legal Officer MM1-1 1 1 1
10 Planning / Coordinating Officer JM1-1 2 1
n Internal Audit Officer JM1-1 2 1 1
12 Administrative Officer JM1-1 2 1 1
13 Stores Officer JM1-1 2 1 1
14 Technical Officer JM1-1 2 1 1
15 éggn;zil.s;ter:)tlve Officer (Human IM1-1 2 : 1
16 Procurement Officer JM1-1 2 1
17 Transport Officer JM1-1 2 1 1
18 Accounts Officer JM1-1 2 1 1
19 Network Administration Officer JM1-1 2 1 1
20 Chief of the Center JM1-1 Fixed 2 58 42
21 Assistant Chief of the Center JM1-1 Fixed 2 59 43
22 Development Assistant MA 3 3 160 131
23 Management Assistant MA 1-1 3 102 1 92
24 Tamil Translator MA 1-1 3 6 1
25 Instructor (Aesthetics) MA 1-1 3 20 15
26 Instructor (Tamil) MA 1-1 3 57 31
27 Instructor (IT) MA 1-1 3 59 45
28 Instructor (English) MA 1-1 3 58 38
29 Instructor (Drill) MA 1-1 Fixed 3 17 124
30 Instructor (Drill and Discipline) MA 1-1 3 88 82
31 Driver PL3 4 7 1 7 1
32 Electrician PL3 4 1 1
33 Messenger PL3 4 1 1
34 | KKS PL1 4 33 1 30
35 Store Keeper PL1 4 39 34
Total 649 | 297 4 | 529 | 210 1
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1.2 Cadre Analysis

Employment Type Analysis

Vacancies
Permanent Contract Casual YVacancies
B Employment Type Analysis 529 210 1 210

The approved cadre strength of
2022 stood as 740.

the Youth Corps is 950. The actual cadre during the year

The above staff on a contract basis consists of legally discharged or retired personnel who

have served in the three armed

forces and it also includes officers of the National Cadet

Corps for duty in the the Youth Corps on a secondment basis.

Carder Analysis

350

300

250

200

Axis Title

150

100

50

i 3

Senior Middle Junior Developm | Managem

Tamil Primary

Managem Managem MNanagem ent ent Instructors

ent ent ent Assistant | Assistant

B Carder Analysis 3 11

Translator Catogories

94 131 82 1 335 74
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1.3 Vacancies of Employees - in detail

Srl. No. Position Vacancies
1. Assistant Director (Administration) 1
2. Assistant Director (Provincial) 3
3. Planning / Coordinating Officer 1
4, Procurement Officer 1
5. Chief of the Center 16
6. Assistant Chief of the Center 16
7. Development Assistant 29
8. Management Assistant 1
9. Tamil Translator 5
10. Instructor (Aesthetics) 5
1. Instructor (Tamil) 26
12. Instructor (IT) 14
13. Instructor (English) 20
14. Instructor (Drill) 47
15. Instructor (Drill and Discipline) 6
16. KKS
17. Store Keeper 5

Total 210

The Youth Corps, which is an organization that conducts courses for youth development,
consists of a trained panel of personnel and an administrative staff. Training of trainers

is undertaken on a regular basis in order to maintain and improve the quality of the

training courses. Moreover, various training programs have been conducted to train the
management staff to maintain the administration of the institution in an orderly, streamlined
and efficient manner.

Accordingly, a capacity development training program for newly appointed Development
Officers has been implemented in Hambantota district and 10 scholarships have been
awarded to 10 members of the staff. Three training programs have been undertaken for the
purpose of training trainers as well whilst spending 2958 human days of training.

Furthermore, a six-day seminar series on Sri Lankan Accounting Standards, a workshop
on career counseling and positive guidance, a residential training workshop on skill
development and a workshop on discipline and office etiquette for drivers and office
assistants have been conducted.

In 2022, the National Youth Corps was also able to lay claim on the following achievements
in the training programs of staffs and instructors.

14 life skills instructors participated in the psycho-counseling certificate course
conducted by the National Authority on Tobacco and Alcohol (NAITA) and among the lot, the
National Youth Corps emerged as winners, securing the first place in the island.

The National Youth Corps had the opportunity for representing the CERTs 2022
International Tournament on Disaster Management held in Pakistan.

The participation of an officer representing the National Youth Corps in the ‘Program
for Enhancement of Emergency Response (Peer) in South Asia (Master Instructor) held in
Thailand.



14 Legal Division

This Division, with the assistance from its respective staffs carry out its duties such as the
convening of the Youth Corps Council, the tabling of the council papers presented by the
respective Divisions to the Council, forwarding the decisions made by the Council on the
papers approved by it to the relevant Divisions and the officers concerned, attending to
coordination work of all Council members including the taking up of minutes of the Council
meetings and attending to all legal and judicial matters and appearing on behalf of the Youth
Corps in such cases under the direct supervision of the Director of the Youth Corps.

1.9 Internal Audit Division

The Internal Audit Division, consisting of a staff under the Internal Audit Officer, is in
operation under the direct supervision of the Director of the National Youth Corps and the
respective audits are carried out by this Division at the Youth Corps Headquarters and all
training centers and the audit queries arising from such audits are duly raised wherever
necessary.
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The National Youth Corps, being in the forefront of advocating the objectives of widening

the range of experience of the trainees, developing good attitudes in the young cadets,
enhancing the sense of pride of the labour, developing the sense of patriotism, building

a good social relationship in them and also for them to gain practical experience of
interpersonal and inter-institutional relations, build human and social sensitivity, etc., sets in
motion a host of social empowerment programmes towards that end.

'Senehe Piyasa' Housing Project

The 'Senehe Piyasa' housing project has been implemented under the Community
Development Program with the aim of gifting the society a sensitive generation of youth by
imparting an understanding about the needs of others by getting the young trainees engaged
in @ mission of building a house for the sake of the poor, low-income or disabled families
due to various reasons who find it impossible to afford a need of a house by themselves
alone.

Construction of 55 new houses, one house each from one training centre will be undertaken
under this initiative. This project is an exercise the young cadets themselves engage

in overseeing its planning and putting into practice and this whole effort envisages the
establishment of a sort of intended experience expected of it in the minds of young cadets.

Srl. No. |Description No. of Hoses

1. Houses handed over to the beneficiaries 16

2. Construction of those houses on completion 04

3. Houses under construction 35
Total Number of Houses 55
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‘Jeevithayata Jeevayak' Biood Donation Program

Tg Ll A
o = - = N

A drop of blood has infinite strength
to save a life. The merit of donating

a drop of blood is also immense. It is
well explained in Buddhism. There is
a good deal of priority for it in other
religions as well. As such, the blood
donation programs are conducted
annually at the precincts of every
youth corps training center, taking
into account all these aspects of
demonstrating the importance of such
a social welfare program to the young
male and female cadets.

‘Susumata Saviyak’ Program

With the good intension of providing relief to the people affected by the national calamities
such as floods and landslides that occur from time to time all throughout the island, the
helping out programme of 'Susumata Saviyak' was put into gear by the NYC training centres
lending a hand of assistance to the people in distress.
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‘Sathva Mithuru Sathkara’ Program

With a view to fulfilling our social obligation for making room for the survival of every living
being around us in our environment within the context of building the soft skills in the
youthfulness in a gesture of kindness and compassion towards animals, the National Youth
Corps centres across the island, in a special humanitarian program to quell the hunger of
those animals close to us, including the street dogs, who are helpless due to lack of food
on a daily basis, set in motion the ‘Sathva Mithuru Sathkara’ animal friendly programme as
a humanitarian campaign. This was a project open to the trainees of all centres throughout
the island, past trainees of the Youth Corps as well as the staff members of every centre.

T e

“Y - Green” Youth Home Garden Cultivation Project

The “Y - Green” Home Garden Cultivation Project was launched as an active national agri-
entrepreneurial youth home garden cultivation drive in a manner that will be beneficial to

the day to day life of the young
men and women linked to the
National Youth Corps with a
view to making a contribution
by them to accomplish the food
security situation in the country.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2022

DESCRIPTION NOTE
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Short Term Investment

Inventories 01
Advance Receivable 02
Other Receivable 03

Non Current Assets

Working progress 04
Property Plant & Equipment 05
Land, Building & Improvement

Plant Machinery & Equipment

Furniture & Fittings

Motor Vehicle

Training Equipment

Musical & Sports Equipment

Computer Equipment

Office Equipment

Electrical Equipment

Software

Website

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Other Payable 06
Accrued Expenses 07

Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Income
Gratuity Provision 08

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL NET ASSET

NET ASSETS / EQUITY

Accumulated fund

Donated fund

Revaluation reserve
Surplus/(deficit) for the period

TOTAL NET ASSETS / EQUITY

Pirector”
Colonel Dbafshana Rathnayake RWP RSP
National Youth Corps

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard.
ICASL.The NYC Council is Responsible for preparation and presentation of financial statements. These financial ftatempnts

were approved by the council and signed on their behalf.

2022 2021

Rs Rs
87,113,708 180,840,488
5,000,000 5,000,000
125,821,464 141,962,182
121,152,345 143,083,199
27,188,329 22,646,521
366,275,846 493,532,391
847,136,577 1,366,870,635
1,965,838,418 1,450,952,459
26,177,572 15,936,688
92,923,540 116,358,690
79,172,000 988,504
11,301,727 10,434,120
3,889,864 4,956,302
2,632,170 3,228,081
1,270,905 2,096,516
7,622,699 564,886
67,500 101,250
159,900 239,850
3,038,192,872 2,972,727,981
3,404,468,717 3,466,260,371
24,473,724 36,367,540
18,048,523 36,624,351
42,522,247 72,991,891

2,899,630,016

3,028,590,601

59,025,410 48,720,500
2,958,655,426 3,077,311,101

- 3,001,177,673 3,150,302,991
403,291,045 315,957,380
292,238,285 275,740,340
13,159,900 18,017,480
102,679,611 5,701,615
(4,786,751) 16,497,945
403,291,045 315,957,380
Ass'ybn.l—Biﬁaar (finance)

P H C Jayamini
National Youth Corps

igsued by the

Cannkil Mamhar



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2022

DESCRIPTION NOTE
OPERATING REVENUE

Recurrent Fund 9
Other Revenue 10
Transfer from Differed Income

TOTAL INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal Emoluments 11
Supplies 12
Services 13
Maintenance Expenses 14
Travelling & Transport 15
Other Administrative Expenses 16
Depreciation 17
Staff Training 18
Disposal Cost of Inventory 19

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Youth Development Programmes - 20

Youth Training Programmes 21
Student Recruitment & Advertising 22
TOTAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

2022 2021
Rs Rs
789,058,110 643,753,300
10,304,932 623,620
178,168,606 151,694,426
977,531,648 796,071,346
435,815,524 384,161,556
37,519,044 28,346,858
123,633,305 110,380,677
22,199,764 16,332,327
9,843,639 11,183,140
3,949,356 2,579,232
178,168,606 151,694,426
2,701,542 2,811,815
1,214,525 1,069,310
815,045,305 708,559,342
32,982,599 8,867,536
126,715,095 51,855,417
7,575,400 10,291,106
167,273,094 71,014,059
982,318,399 779,573,401
(4,786,751) 16,497,945




CASH FLOW STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2022

DESCRIPTION
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Surplus / Deficit for the year

Non Cash Movements

Depreciation

Gratuity Provision

Amortization - Deferred Income

Sales loss of Property, Plant & Equipment

Increase /( Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase /( Decrease) in Other Payable
(Increase )/Decrease in Other Receivable
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory

Gratuity payment
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of fixed Assets

Expense For Building Constructions

Expense For Working Progress

Sale proceed of Fixed Assets

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Fund received from treasury

Donated Fund

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Period
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD

NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash with bank
Short-term investments

2022 2021

Rs Rs
(4,786,751) 17,031,512
178,168,606 151,825,259
15,053,555 15,247,011
(178,168,606) (151,825,259)
862,316 62,612
11,129,120 32,341,136

(21,604,300)

(29,273,601)

(11,893,816) (8,590,866)
12,375,027 48,869,530
16,140,719 (48,796,601)
(1,720,172) (2,600,535)
4,426,577 (8,050,938)

(38,890,993) (30,727,986)
(628,899,132)  (889,538,279)
518,270,098 573,563,414

538,250 156,291
(148,981,778)  (346,546,559)
55,686,000 304,950,000
(4,857,580) 219,715
50,828,420 305,169,715
(93,726,781) (49,427,783)
185,840,488 235,268,271
92,113,708 185,840,488
92,113,708 185,840,488
2022 2021
87,113,708 180,840,488
5,000,000 5,000,000
92,113,708 185,840,488
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NOTE-02 Advance Receivable

Supplier Name

Construction Advances

D K S Builders

Farm Hill Construction Gampola
Farzan Building Construction
Nemo

U S S Engineering (Pvt) Ltd
Divisional Secretary Nuwaraeliya
Ceyoka Engineering (Pvt) Ltd

Ks Construction & Engineering
Ranweli Construction

Sevana Builders Holding (Pvt) Ltd.

Rent Advances
Building Material Corporation Ltd

NOTE-03 Other Receivable

Electricity & Water Receivable (STF)
Utility Bill Receivable (SED)
Electricity Expen. Receivable (Other)
Interest Receivable

Ministry Retention Receivable
Pre-Paid Expenses

Other Receivable

Advance
Paid

Advance
Settlement

4,325,023
934,658

5,147,568
2,901,028

8,622,577

Advance
Receivable As At
31.12.2022

38,921,021

37,615,680
1,701,148
176,745
23,046,768
6,985,139
12,655,844

Advance
Receivable As At
31.12.2021

18,021,021
4,325t023
934,658
37,615,680
1,701,148
176,745
5,147,568
25,947,796
6,985,139
21,278,421

21,930,854

121,102,345

1430331199

- 50,000 50,000

- - 50,000 50,000

- 21,930,854 121,152,345 143,083,199
2022 2021

276,554 138,507

202,510 864,990

- 2,725,795

34,932 10,596

18,609,852 13,445/488

2,277,367 856,042

5,787,114 4,605,102

27,188,329 22,646,521

Retentions related to constructions of pilot project carried out during the period of year 2016-2018 which was financed!
through ministry sub imprest have been transferred to the deposit account of the ministry. Reamin retention balance as bt
31.12.2022 was Rs 4,777,234, The ministry retention receivable denotes the amount of retentions released from the exit‘ing

cash in which should receive from the ministry.



NOTE-04 Work In Progress
Building Work In Progress

Center
ﬁ}(meemana
Akuressa

Anuradhapuyra
Attanagalla
andarawela

Chilaw
Dambulla
Dehiattakandiya
Dikwella
Diulapitiya
Dodamgaslanda
Embilipitiya
Galigamuwa
Galle
Gampola
Gomarankadawala
Hambanthota
Hanguranketha
Head Quarters
Kalpitiya
Kataragama

\'.,/ Katunayaka
Kegalle
Kekirawa
Kinniya
Kotapola
Kuliyapitiya
Kuchchaweli
Lunugamwehera__
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Mahiyanganaya
Mannar
Mawathagama
Monaragala
Mulathiw
Nattandiya
Nawindanweli
V. Niwithigala
Naula ABT -
v/ Naula
Nuwaraeliya
Panduwasnuwara
Rambawa
Senkadagala
Seruwila
Sooriyawewa
Thanamalwila
Thissamaharamaya
Trincomalee
Wariyapola
Welioya
Wellawaya
/Y akkla
Yatinuwara

2022 2021
. 896,316
522,046 1,230,676

- 7 24,714,235

- 7 97,750
4,449,252 4,449,252
= 21,616,849
40,298,219 25,681,444
71,458,586 70,016,439
75,657,460 76,909,185
23,572,485 26,987,805
529,320 1,695.458
365,431

137,950

398,653

1,990,500

59,911,737

107,649,834

49,850,732 49,850,732
4,721,838 4,721,838
= J 33,128,664
4,211,229 1,826,346
34,292,710 32,239,508
4,494,664 17,967,810
1,373,780

18,177,871 23,002,043
- ™ 65,000
18,755,985 18,149,845
- v 636,707
20,922,854 21,657,519
74,998,900 74,654,970
- v 6,026,826

-4 1,562,856
69,064 1 318,564
129,150,560 206,432,645
< 1,338,188

S 49,525
32,961,619 32,358,386
14,487,835 21,452,526
47,657,474 37,355,905
15,194,719 17,143,998
12,207,212 14,541,475
. 950,473
10,665,502 9,940,608
- 4 274,000

- v 620,540
9,490,880 31,811,190
- v 1 557,980
74,464,705 74,464,705
-V 113,120,504

. 4,767,648
32,779,730 33,779,730
1,523,512 9,068,758
5 25,229,580
19,569,614 19,679,753

847,136,577 1,366,870,635
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NOTE-07 Accrued Expenses

Advertising Payable

Electricity & Water Payable

Fuel Payable

Janitorial Service Payable
Maintenance Plant Machinery Payable
Maintenance Building Structure Payable
Maintenance Vehicle Payable

NVQ Assessment Payable

Other Payable

Passing Out Payable

Paurushabimani Payable

Transport Payable

ABT Payable

Vocational Training Payable

OT Payable

Multi Task Expenses Payable

Student Recruitment Payable

Audit Fee Payable

Scholarship for VT Payable
Refreshment Payable

Furniture & Office Equipment Payable
Plant Machinery & Equipment Payable
Building & Structure Payable
Domestic Travelling Payable

Postal & Communication Payable
Rent & Local Tax Payable

Security Payable

Stationary Payable

Salary & Wages Payable

E P F Payable

E T F Payable

Building Rehabilitation Payable

Vehicle Rehabilitation Payable
Training Material Payable

Gratuity Payable
Marketing Pro Nationl Payable
Language Dev Programme Payable

NOTE-08 Gratuity Provision

Gratuity Provision As At 01.01.2022
Gratuity Provision for the Year 2022
Gratuity Payment During the Year 2022
Transferred to Current Liabilities
Gratuity Provision As At 31.12.2022

2022 2021
2 1 14,073
1,710,533 1,609,456
573,359 575,909
- 1,999,424
39,502 127‘,781
4,925 196,435
96,177 1,121,347
- 10,000
2,093,572 i
. 944,700
" 329,611
449,750 994,382
; 182,130
1,809,055 282,950
99,714 55,988
: 85,377
' 271,734
479,550 1,050,000
s 221,885
1,506 5,266
s 127,085
: 2,387,513
: 7,350,458
286,423 247,119
294,053 414477
5 261200
: 8,998,046
480 794/673
2,247,637 945|736
402,411 194}198
60,362 29130
1,605,285 1,164|605
: 499675
. 201420
5,078,155 3,063|570
689,975 |
26,100 !
18,048,523 36,624/351
2022 2021
48,720,500 38,870/054
15,053,555 15,247/011
(1,720,172) (2,600/535)
(3,028.473) (2,796,031)
59,025,410 48,720,500




NOTE-09

NOTE-10

NOTE-11

NOTE-12

NOTE-13

NOTE-14

Recurrent Fund
Recurrent Grant

Other Revenue

Tender Fee

Other

Supplier Registration
Rent

Shortage Recovery Income
Delay Charges

Nuwara Eliya Circuit Fee
Crops Income

ABT Revenue

Hotel School Fee
Interest Income

Personal Emoluments

Salaries & Wages
OT & Holiday Pay
Staff Allowances
ETF

EPF

Gratuity

Supplies

Fuel

Stationary
Uniforms
Training Material
Other Supplies

Services

Postal & Communication
Electricity & Water

Rent & Local Tax
Janitorial Service
Security Service
Insurance

Audit Fee

Maintenance Expenses

Maintenance Building Structure
Maintenance Plant Machinery

Maintenance Vehicle

2022 2021
789,058,110 643,753,300
789,058,110 643,753,300

314,000 316,000
8,235,141 (989,579)
- 334,000
75,700 12,500
141,693 78,902
= 151,051
6,000 .
466,860 491,146
457,600 229,600
434,000 -
173,938 -

10,304,932 623,620

291,444,101 240,821,843
1,189,209 1,010,216
80,379,390 82,433,847
9,479,668 8,916,328
38,074,565 35,732,310

15,248,590 15,247,011
435,815,524 384,161,556

12337156011 6,296,932

10,957,811 9,628,994

12,985,108 11,083,648

1,086,547 1,168,444
117,977 168,841
37,519,044 28,346,858
6,724,819 6,457,865
20,258,427 13,549,922
512,443 589,493
22,247,021 26,108,604
71,606,915 62,061,121
1,702,729 563,674
580,950 1,050,000
123,633,305 110,380,677

5.5915739 4,447,177

8,761,369 6,410,613

7,846,656 5,474,537

22,199,764 16,332,327




NOTE-15

NOTE-16

NOTE-17

NOTE-18

NOTE-19

2022 2021
Travelling & Transport
Transport 6,380,141 7,170,851
Traveling domestic 1,283,882 659,605
Traveling foreign - 890,359
Lease rental 2,179,617 2,462,325
9,843,639 11,183,140
Other Administrative Expenses
Legal Charges - 58,500
Other 1,547,911 690,709
Disposal Loss " NOTE-16-1 862,316 62,612
Council Meeting 536,718 533,841
Refreshment 1,002,411 1,209,091
Software Development - 24,479
3,949,356 2,579,232
Depreciation
Land, Building & Improvement 114,013,173 82,612,884
Motor Vehicle 19,793,000 3,954,272
Furniture & Fittings 26,211,752 26,159,692
Music & Sports Equipment 1,061,188 1,061,188
Office Equipment 854,723 1,495,849
Electrical Equipment 1,963,532 535.526
Computer Equipment 1,107,811 20,773,104
Plant & Machinery 8,616,614 10,440,816
Training & Equipment 4433113 4,547,395
Software 33,750 33,750
Website 79,950 79,950
178,168,606 151,694,426
Staff Training
TOT Programme Capacity Building 1,460,278 813,873
Training Capacity Building 1,241,264 1,997,942
2,701,542 2,811,815
Disposal Cost of Inventory
Disposal Cost of Inventory 1,214,525 1,069,310
1,214,525 1,069,310




NOTE-20

NOTE-21

NOTE-22

NOTE-16-1

Youth Development Programmes

Vocational Training
Dambulla Hotel School
Passing Out

ABT

Youth Training Programmes

NVQ Assessment

Leadership Programme

Sport Festival

Art Festival

S T D Programme

Drug Addiction Progrmme

N C D Programme

Awarding Ceremony

Commiunity Programme

Disaster Management

Language Development Programme
Other Job Oriented Training

High Performance Centers

Co Existance Communities
Industry Exposure Visit

Life Skill Development Programme

Student Recruitment & Advertising

Advertising
Recruitments

Disposal Loss/(Profit)
Disposal Cost of Assets

Depreciation Of Disposal Asset
Sale Proceed Of Fixed Assets

Disposal Loss for the Year

2022 2021
8,144,869 3,168,638
18,725,830 922,100
: 3,661,929
6,111,900 1,114,869
32,982,599 8,867,536
455,509 762,303
472,577 277,338
386,256 935,622
343,150 !
3,488 790
3,440 2,725
: 2,285
- 6,938,912
: 5,500,000
13,480 !
2,003,259 }
65,648,201 ;
69,250 !
78,950 !
44,378 !
57,193,159 37,435,441
126,715,095 51,855,417
1,612,377 4,608,049
5,963,023 5,683,057
7,575,400 10,291,106
8,101,608 2,296,832
8,101,608 2,206,332
(6,701,042) (2,077,929)
(538,250) (156,291)
862,316 62,612




General Policies
1.Assets and Base of their valuation

1.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at
banks, and on hand and short —term deposits with a maturity of three or less. Cash and
cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash and short - term deposits as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

1.2 Short Term Investment

Short term investment comprises of short term deposits held in commercial banks with a
maturity of three or less. The interest income of the deposit is credited to the respective
fund which is invested.

1.3 Receivables
Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize, net of provisions for
bad and doubtful receivables.

1.4 Capital Work - in progress

Work in progress of the projects are carried at cost.

1.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

National Youth Corps prepared financial statements on year 2015 onwards. Assets were
revalued by the committee appointed by the Ministry of National Policies & Economic
Affairs base on the recommendation of the council of NYC since the value of the assets
have not been previously accounted.

Buildings accommodate by the NYC have not been revalued since the title of those lands
were not belong to the NYC. The construction cost incurred from 2011 onwards has been
depreciated at the rate of 5% since those constructions were based on capital funds
released by the treasury. The vehicles are not belonging to the NYC except three wheelers
but all have been depreciated at the rate of 20%.

NYC applies cost model to Property, Plant and Equipment and records at cost of purchase
or construction together with any incidental expenses thereon less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of financial performance during the financial period in which
they are incurred.



Where item of Property, Plant and Equipment are fully depreciated, the entire class of asset is
revalued by considering the fair value changes in the asset or reviewing the life time of the asset
and adjusting in accordance with the SLIPSAS 03 “Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.”

Where item of Property, Plant and Equipment is revalued the entire class of such assets is
revalued. Any revaluation surplus is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and
accumulated in equity in the Asset Revaluation Reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss,
in which case the increase is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. A revaluation deficit
1s recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing
surplus on the same asset recognized in the asset revaluation reserve.

Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon
disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to
retained earnings.

Depreciation

Depreciation on assets is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amount over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building & Structure 5%
Plant & Machinery 20%
Motor Vehicle 20%
Fumiture & Fittings 10%
Office Equipment 20%
Training equipment 20%
Music & Sports Equipment 20%
Computer & Accessories 20%
Electrical equipment 20%
Library Books 12.5%

The depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment begins from the year in which the assets
were purchased or constructed and no depreciation is charged in the year of disposal.

1.6 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired by the entity are initially recognized at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation on intangible assets, is
calculated using straight —line method at a rate of 25% over their estimated useful lives.



2. Liabilities and Provisions
2.1 Current Liabilities

A liability is considered as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating
cycle and due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

2.2 Employee Benefit Obligation
Defined Contribution Plans - Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund

Employees are cligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’
Trust Fund Contributions in line with the respective statutes and regulations. NYC
contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees to Employees’ Provident
Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

2.3 Government Grants and Subsidies.

Government grants are accounted on receipt basis. Grant related to recurrent expenditure
is credited to the Statement of Financial Performance under the operating revenue.

Capital grant is credited to the Differed Income Capital grant and Capital grant is differed
and recognized in a statement of financial performance on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.

3. Revenue and Expense Recognition

3.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the entity, and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable.

3.2 Expenditure Recognition
All the expenses related to the financial year in the form of outflows or consumption of

assets or incurrences of liabilities are recognized on accrual basis in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
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Auditor General's Report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 on the financial
statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31st December 2022 of the
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The above report signed by the Auditor General and a certified copy of the Financial Statements have
been sent herewith.
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2. Director General - Department of Sports Development
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Chairman,
Youth Corps.

Auditor General's Report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 on the financial
statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31st December 2022 of the
National Youth Corps

1. Financial Statements

1.1 Qualified Opinion

The audit of the financial statements of the National Youth Corps for the year ended 31 December 2022
comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 and the statement of financial
performance and the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended and also, the cash
flow statement, the notes to financial statements and the summary of significant accounting policies
for the year then ended was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154
(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read with the provisions of the
National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 and the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971. My report will be tabled in due
course in Parliament in terms of Article 154 (6) of the Constitution.

| am of the opinion that, except for the effects of the matters described in the Qualified Opinion section
of my report, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the National Youth Corps as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.



1.2 Basis for the Qualified Opinion

(a) Even though, in accordance with the paragraph 65 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standard No. 07, the residual value and the effective life span of an asset should be reviewed at least
at the end of each annual reporting period, action had not been taken to adjust the estimate of the
effective life span of 05 items of the assets still in use following their full depreciation amounting to Rs.
333,349,252 million in the accounts as at 31 December 2022, after having them subject to revaluation.
(b) Even though, in accordance with the paragraph 69 of Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard
No. 07, the depreciation was stated to have been calculated from the date when the non-current
assets became apt for use, a sum amounting to Rs. 37,812,139 had been over-depreciated due to the
fact that the non-current assets acquired by the Corps during the year under review were depreciated
for the whole of the year.

(c) Even though, in accordance with the paragraph 49 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standard No. 07, when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the class of property, plant
and equipment to which such asset belongs should be subject to revaluation as a whole in its entirety,
the Corps had not revalued 03 motor cars owned by the institution at the time of the revaluation of the
motor cars during the year 2022. The allocation of cost and accumulated depreciation in respect of
these 03 vehicles which were not revalued had been adjusted to the revaluation account.

(d) Inthe financial statements, the amount of depreciation worth Rs. 391,413 in respect of the year 2022
in the calculation of profit made due to the execution of the revaluation of the institution's vehicles on
31 December 2022 had been understated whilst the amount of depreciation worth Rs. 19,401,587 due
to the calculation of vehicle depreciation for the whole year based on the revalued value had been
overstated.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

1.3 Other information contained in the 2022 Annual Report of the Corps

The ‘other information’ means the information included in the 2022 Annual Report of the National
Youth Corps that is expected to be given to me after the date of this audit, but, not included in the
financial statements and my audit report in that respect. The management is responsible for this other
information.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and |, in any manner,
do not guarantee or make any statement on them.

My responsibility on the audit of the financial statements is to read the above mentioned other
information when they are made available and to consider if such other information is significantly
inconsistent with the financial statements or the knowledge | obtained during the course of the audit
or otherwise.

When reading the 2022 Annual Report of the Corps, if | conclude that there are significant
misrepresentations, such matters should be communicated to the governing parties for correction.
If there exist further uncorrected misrepresentations, they will be included in the report that will be
tabled in due course in Parliament in terms of Article 154 (6) of the Constitution.



1.4 Responsibilities of the management and those parties charged with governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of the
Corps to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the fund or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those parties charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of the Corps.

As per sub section 16 (1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the corps is required to maintain
proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to enable annual and
periodic financial statements to be prepared of the Corps.

1.5 Responsibility of the auditor in the audit of Financial Statements

My objective as a whole is to provide a reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from frauds and errors that occurred due to inaccurate false statements and to release the auditor's
report along with my opinion. While fair assurance is a high-level guarantee, it may not always be an
assurance that the auditing in accordance with Sri Lanka Audit Standards will always detect incorrect
substantial errors. Frauds and errors are likely to result in substantial disclosures, either due to
individual or collective effects, and the substantiality of it may depend on the impact of the economic
decisions made by the users, based on these financial statements.

The audit was carried out by me with professional judgment and professional skepticism in
keeping with the Sri Lanka Audit Standards. And, | further,

Designed and implemented audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
in identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatements that could result in the financial
statements owing to frauds and errors, in setting up a basis for the audit opinion that was expressed.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is more severe than that caused
by the reasons such as material misstatements resulting from the erroneous recording and collusion,
preparation of forged documents, intentional omissions or the override of internal controls.

Acquired an understanding on the internal control relevant to the audit of the Corps in order
to design circumstantially suitable audit procedures, even though it was not with the intention of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal control.

Evaluated the suitability of the accounting policies used, the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates and the related disclosures made by the management.

Concluded on the relevance of applying the going concern basis of the entity’s sustainability
for accounting purposes based on the audit evidence acquired as to whether there exists a substantial
uncertainty on the sustainability of the National Youth Corps due to events or conditions. In case |
determine that such uncertainty exists, my report should pay attention to the disclosures regarding
the financial statements and if those disclosures are not sufficient, my opinion must be modified.
However, continued sustainability may cease to exist due to future events or conditions.

Evaluated the fact that the transactions and events underlying the structure and content of



the financial statements have been incorporated in a reasonable and fair manner and the overall
presentation of the financial statements including disclosures.

The governing parties concerned will be made aware of the significant audit findings, major weaknesses
of the internal controls and other matters identified during the course of my audit.

2.  Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
2.1 National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 contains special provisions relating to the following requirements.

2.1.1 In accordance with the requirements set out in Section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No.
19 of 2018, | have, except for the observations made in the Qualified Opinion section of my report,
obtained all the information and explanations required for the audit and as was evident according to
my investigation, the Corps had continued to maintain proper financial records.

212 The financial statements presented by the Corps in accordance with the requirements of
Section 6 (1) (d) (iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 are consistent with the previous year.

2.1.3 The recommendations | made in the previous year, excluding the observations made in the
Basis for the Qualified Opinion section of my report, have been included in the financial statements
submitted in accordance with the requirement of Section 6 (i) (d) (iv) of the National Audit Act, No. 19
of 2018.

2.2  Interms of the measures adopted and the amount of evidence that was obtained and within the
limitation confined to material considerations, nothing met with my attention as to make the following
statements.

2.21 That any member of the governing body of the Corps has any direct or indirect interest in any
contract entered into by the Corps which is out of the normal cause of business as per the requirement
of section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

2.2.2 That the Corps has not acted in a manner inconsistent with any applicable written law, general
and special directions issued by the governing body of the Corps as per the requirement of section 12
(f) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.



Reference to law / direction

(a) Para 5.1 of tthe Public Enterprises Circular
No. PED /12 dated 2 June 2003.

(b) Public Accounts Circular No. 842 dated 19
December 1978.

(c) Section 2 (4) of the Youth Corps Act, No. 21
of 2002.

(d) Ministry of Public Administration and
Management Circular No. 05/2008 dated 06
February 2008 as amended by Circular No. 05
/2008/(1) dated 24 January 2018.

(e) Para 02 of Asset Management Circular No.
02 /2017 dated 21 December 2017.

Observations

As per the circular instructions, the corporate
plan had not been prepared for the Corps.

Even though a fixed assets register for the
cost of property, plant and equipment valued
at Rs. 3,054,661,826 million as at 31 December
2022 had been maintained by the Corps, it had
not been updated in a proper manner.

Even though it has been stated that 3
committees should be appointed for vocational
training and youth development as may be
necessary for the administration of the affairs
of the council and the council may delegate
its powers to those committees, the National
Youth Corps from its inception in the year 2002
had not so acted upon.

(i) In terms of the Citizens / Clients
Charter, the institution had not prepared the
Citizens / Clients Charter and implemented it.

(ii) Annual performance contracts had not
been signed for the entire staff.

As per the circular instructions, 08 vehicles
used by the Corps costing Rs. 31,550,000 had
not been registered in the name of the Corps.

2.2.3 That the Corps has performed in a manner inconsistent with its powers, functions and duties
as per the requirement of section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act, 2018.

2.2.4 That the resources of the Corps had not been procured and utilized economically, efficiently and
effectively within the time frames and in compliance with the applicable laws as per the requirement
of section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act.

3. Other Matters

(@) Out of the Corps owned 65 lands where the training centres have been established as at 31
December 2022, only 22 lands had been acquired to the Corps and the acquisition of the remaining 43
lands had not been finalized up until this point of time.

(b) Even though a new Act should be passed after rescinding the existing Youth Corps Act in order
to carry out the work of empowering the community of youth in the country even better and more
effectively, according to the Cabinet Decision dated 15 December 2011, action had not been taken in
that regard in pursuance of such Cabinet Decision despite a period of more than 11 years had lapsed.



(c) The overpaid sum amounting to Rs. 1,976,042 and the receivable contract advances amounting to
Rs. 119,664,051 between 2 and 5 years old in respect of the construction of the Wennappuwa training
center, work of which had been completed on 21 August 2018, had not been recovered so far.

(d) Between the periods of 02 to 09 year ranges, the retained money amounting to Rs. 1,162,513 had
been shown in the financial statements of the year under review without being settled up.

(e) There was an advance balance totaling Rs. 60,625,716 which was the sum paid to the contractors
during the years 2016 - 2017 in relation to 5 training centers whose construction work has been
stopped. Even though these contracts were canceled from the periods between 02 and 06 years, the
Corps had not taken steps to recover such advances so far.

(f) In the year 2016, the Cabinet of Ministers had approved the construction of 10 new training
centers and 21 building units of the existing centers by a government agency outside of the open
tender procedure. Due to the setbacks of related construction progress, these contracts had been
canceled in pursuance of the decision of the Cabinet of Ministers in the year 2022. Even though, a sum
amounting to Rs. 71,618,995 out of the advance amount of Rs. 109,234,674 given for the construction
work had remained settled in 2016 and 2017, the Corps had failed to recover the yet outstanding advance
amount worth Rs. 37,615,680 in spite of the lapse of more than 03 years since the cancellation of the
construction work concerned.

(g) Inthe year 2022, the Corps had been provided with an additional allocation of Rs. 90 million for
the purpose of directing the young men and women for employment based on their skills. Towards
that end, the institution had drawn out plans for the implementation of a job-oriented training program
consisting of 16 courses for 4499 trainees by 07 private vocational training institutes. However, in
the implementation of the training activities, there were 2 courses that were run by the institution
included in its action plan of the respective year and a sum amounting to Rs. 25.8 million had been
spent for these courses from the said provision. Even though, an online training course had been
conducted for 1392 trainees at a cost of Rs. 1.6 million, the institution had no data in its possession
about the progress of the trainees. The institution had feedback data of only 723 trainees. Of these, only
712 Vocational Training Qualification (NVQ) certificates had been issued so far. As such, the training
activities conducted with the aim of providing a new job based on the skill, had not achieved adequate
performance during the year under review.

(h) As of 31 December, 2022, there were 950 approved cadre and 743 actual staff in the Corps thereby
resulting in 207 vacancies of officers. Among those vacancies, there were 117 vacancies in the post
of instructor, which, in the main, has a high impact on the desired objectives and performance of the
National Youth Corps.

W.P.C. Wickramaratna,
Auditor General
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Auditor General
National Audit Office, No. 306/72,
Polduwa Road, Battaramulla.

Auditor General's Report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 on the financial
statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31st December 2021 of the
National Youth Corps

01. Financial Statements
11 Opinion
1.2 Comments on the Financial Statements
(a) Deviation from the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards
(i) It is admitted that action has not been taken by the National Youth Corps to review the assets

of the institution having the value of an asset depreciated by reducing the residual value and life span
of it at the end of every year despite the fact it is so required in accordance with Paragraph 65 of the
Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard No. 07. However, the revaluation of musical instruments
and motor vehicles has accordingly been carried out and the relevant adjustments have been made in
the annual financial statements for the year 2022 as of now.

Likewise, revaluation of computer equipment is currently being undertaken, and in the ensuing year, |
will take action to subject other items as well to revaluation and make relevant adjustments.

(i) The National Youth Corps maintains an asset register using excel software. As a large number
of assets was purchased for the new centers and the centers then existed under the pilot project
during the years 2016 and 2017, it was found to be

practically problematic to so compute the depreciation from the date of use of the asset
separately for each item of such asset by way of the software.

Due to this, disclosures were made in the accounting policies of the statements of accounts to provide
for depreciation for the full year related to the date on which an asset becomes apt for use and not
to give effect to depreciation for the year in respect of which it is removed. The relevant provisions for
depreciation are made accordingly and, in the future, it is planned out to enter the related data to the
fixed assets module of the currently used accounting system, thereby making an effort to rectify the
issue.



(iii) 80 of the 83 vehicles owned by the National Youth Corps have been revalued, and at the time of
the revaluation of the vehicles at the headquarters (the numbers of such vehicles bearing Nos. 03 - PD
6147, PC - 1157, GC - 1157 as indicated in the audit query should read correctly as follows.), the vehicles
bearing Nos. PD - 6147, PC - 1157 and GC - 9245 were assigned for essential duties of the Youth Corps
and could not therefore be revalued together at the same time where the respective inspector of
motor vehicles informed that it would be done at a later date. On inquiry on a later date, it was advised
that another inspector of motor vehicles be appointed as the said inspector of motor vehicles has
been transferred from the Narahenpita office. Accordingly, another inspector of motor vehicles has
been nominated and available for the revaluation of the aforesaid 03 vehicles. As such, the revaluation
concerned is due to take place on 26 May 2023, and | will take action to get the revaluation done and
show it in the accounts for the year 2023.

Furthermore, | accept that the cost and accumulated depreciation provisions related to those
03 vehicles which were not subject to revaluation have been adjusted to the revaluation account.
Action will be taken to correct it in the accounts for the year 2023.

(b) The National Youth Corps maintains a fixed asset register using Excel software, and due to
the purchase of a large amount of fixed assets under the pilot project during the years 2016 - 2018,
practical difficulties arose to the said register being updated.

However, those assets are currently being revalued and the assets register updated.

(c) As all the payments related to the construction work of Training Center in Monaragala from
among the work items herein shown have been settled up by the year 2023, the values concerned will
be capitalized during this year.

As the construction of the Naula (ABT) training center still continues to be operative, it is accounted
for as work in progress.

However, the construction work at Tissamaharamaya, Lunugamwehera and Dehiattakandiya training
centers was carried out by NEMO, and as the final bills have not been submitted for payment as yet, it
needs to be shown further as work in progress.

(d) The construction work of the training centers referred to above was carried out by NEMO and
the final bills have not been submitted for payment as yet, and therefore cannot be capitalized and is
to be shown as work in progress.

(e) It is admitted that the revaluation profit has been decreased due to the inclusion of the repairs
done to the vehicles that were not revalued and the depreciation related to the values thereof when
calculating the vehicle revaluation profit at the end of the year 2022. Action will be taken to correct it
in 2023.

(f) The revaluation of the vehicles was carried out on 31 December 2022 and | acknowledge that a
depreciation calculation has been made for the entirety of the year. Action will be taken to rectify that

error in the accounts for the year 2023.

1.3 Responsibilities of the management and those parties charged with governance for the Financial
Statements

1.4 Responsibility of the auditor in the audit of Financial Statements



2.  Rreport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
222
Reference to law / direction Observations

(i) The strategic plan for the year 2023 - 2027 has been drafted and finalized by now. The draft is to
be submitted for the approval of the National Youth Corps Council and after the approval of the Council,
it is to be translated into English and Tamil languages, It is scheduled to be completed by 30 July 2023.

(i) The National Youth Corps maintains a fixed assets register using Excel software, and due to
the purchase of a large amount of fixed assets under the pilot project during the years 2016 - 2018,
practical difficulties arose to keep the register updated.

However, those assets are currently being revalued and the asset register updated.

(iii) Since there is no mention of these three committees in the new authority act to be amended,
a council paper regarding the appointment of these 03 committees has been made to the upcoming
council meeting.

(iv) (i) The Citizens / Clients Charter has now been drafted. It is expected to submit the said Charter
to the National Youth Corps Council for approval, after making necessary amendments thereto.

(ii) Annual Performance Agreements for the staff are currently being signed and will be
finalized soon.

(iii)  would also like to state that the responsibility of drawing out a human resource development
plan, organizing capacity building programs and conducting skill development programs has been
assigned to the Additional Director (Administration and Finance) of the National Youth Corps.

(v)

Srl.|Vehicle No. | Vehicle Type [Value (Rs.) |Registered Owner of|Present Progress of
No. the Vehicle Vehicle Acquisition

01 PE -0914 Double Cab |6,000,000.00 | State Ministry of Skills [The approval of the
Development Vocational | State Ministry of Skill
Education, Research | Development, Vocational
and Innovation Education, Research
and Innovation has
been received for taking
over of the vehicle and
the relevant MTé6 Form
has been forwarded to
transfer the registration
rights.

02 PD -9016 Double Cab |6,000,000.00 | State Ministry of Skills [The approval of the
DevelopmentVocational | State Ministry of Skill
Education, Research | Development, Vocational
and Innovation Education, Research
and Innovation has
been received for taking
over of the vehicle and
the relevant MTé6 Form
has been forwarded to
transfer the registration
rights.
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03

PD -6147

Double Cab

5,700,000.00

Ministry of Economic
Development

The matter regarding the
approval necessary for
taking over of the vehicle
has been referred to the
Ministry of Economic
Development and the
relevant approval has not
been received as yet. A
further inquiry has been
made in this regard.

04

PC -1157

Double Cab

5,000,000.00

Ministry of Economic
Affairs, Children, Youth
and Cultural Affairs

The matter regarding the
approval necessary for
taking over of the vehicle
has been referred to the
Ministry of Economic
Development and the
relevant approval has not
been received as yet. An
inquiry has been made in
this regard once again.

05

G - 4505

Motor Car

1,550,000.00

Ministry  of  Higher
Education and
Information Technology

The approval of the
State Ministry of Skill
Development, Vocational
Education, Research
and Innovation has
been received for taking
over of the vehicle and
the relevant MT6 Form
has been forwarded to
transfer the registration
rights.

06

KA -5274

Motor Car

1,800,000.00

Department of Technical
Education and Training

The vehicle has been
handed over to the
Department of Technical
Education and Training
which owns the vehicle
as per Asset Management
Circular 02/2017.

07

LK -6097

Lorry

3,000,000.00

State Ministry of Skills
Development Vocational
Education, Research
and Innovation

The approval of the
State Ministry of Skill
Development, Vocational
Education, Research
and Innovation has
been received for taking
over of the vehicle and
the relevant MTé6 Form
has been forwarded to
transfer the registration
rights.




08 GC -9245 | Motor Car 2,500,000.00 | Small Business | The MTé6 Form required
Development Division, | to take possession of the
Ministry of Sports and | vehicle has been received
Youth Affairs after completion and
the relevant documents
have to be forwarded to
the Department of Motor
Vehicles.

(vi) The balance of gratuity payable by the Youth Corps as at 31 December 2022 has been shown
as Rs. 4,883,170.00. Of that value, a sum amounting to Rs. 1,913,911.00 has been paid out as gratuity.
When an officer resigns from service, the Human Resources Department will notify the officer of his
entitlement to receive the gratuity. Even though such notifications were made, these payments have
been further delayed due to the fact that certain officers fail to formally clearing the documents and
submit necessary documentation for the purpose. Also, some officials have gone abroad now. It can
also be pointed out that these circumstances too causes the payment being still delayed. | wish to
further point out that the headquarters has also issued written notices to the officers who are entitled
to gratuity to come forward to receive the gratuity they are entitled to.

2.2.4 (a) Management inefficiencies

0] The number of lands where the Youth Corps training centers are situated is 62. The lands on
which 22 training centers are located has been acquired by the line Ministry to which the National
Youth Corps belonging. Land transfer of 02 more centers has been approved by the Commissioner
General of Lands and will be taken possession of in the near future.

Apart from this, the transfer of land in 07 more centers has been recommended by the Divisional
Secretaries and the Provincial Land Commissioners and submitted to the Department of the
Commissioner General of Lands for which the approval of the Commissioner General of Lands will be
given. Matters involving land acquisition in the remaining 31training centers continue to be in progress.
Out of these 31 centers, the lands where 09 centers are located are situated in the lands belonging
to various institutions including National Housing Development Authority, Board of Investment in
Sri Lanka and Kahatagaha Graphite Company. Action will be taken to take over the other lands as
well, where 22 centers are located and the necessary work connected thereto is being carried out in
coordination with the respective Divisional Secretaries.

(ii) The National Youth Corps Authority Act has now been completed and approved by the Attorney
General and submitted to the Cabinet for approval. The Cabinet of Ministers has informed that further
amendments are necessary to be incorporated in this Act, causing the approval therefor being
postponed.

(iii) Recruitment and Promotion :- Newspaper, TV and Radio advertisements have been circulated
for recruitment and promotion only for the first batch of 2022.

Likewise, handbills, banners and posters were not printed during the year 2022, and the activities
involving the recruitment drive for the courses of training were advertised through Sri Lanka Telecom
using social media in the main.

Advertising :- Due to limitations of the acquisition of assets in the year 2022 and non-receipt of cash
imprest of the capital fund from the Treasury within the specific time limits in pursuance of the State
Budget Circular No. 03/2022 dated 26.04.2022, the planned out procurement advertisements relating



to the purchases and works of construction were not advertised owing to the non-implementation of
such activities during the year. In view of this, the physical and financial progress of the procurement
process remained at a low ebb.

Sports and Special Events :- This is the money allocated for ‘Paurushabhimani Programme’ and as
the program was scheduled to be held on 24.12.2022 at the Bandaranaike Memorial International
Conference Hall (BMICH) which was reserved for the purpose, payments were made only for such
reservation with the approval of the Line Ministry Secretary. But due to an unavoidable reason, the
program got underway only on 17.01.2023.

(iv) Of the amount worth Rs. 43 million allocated to the Dambulla Hotel School for the year 2022,
procurement requestsin respect of that year have been submitted only for Rs. 31 million of the projected
amount as given in details below. Accordingly, | would like to point out that the actual expenditure on
food and beverages from January to December 2022 is Rs. 18,630,205.00.

(Description of trainees recruited)

Year Expected No. of | No. of Registered | No. of those who completed the
Students Students Course
2022 400 125+244 = 369 113+191 = 304

A lower value in financial progress up to 43% than the estimated amount as such is because the
number of trainees registered for the course was less than the projected nhumber of trainees at the
hotel school for the year 2022 and the payments for food were made only on the basis of the daily
attendance of such trainees.

(v) | kindly point out that the estimated expenditure under the capital expenditure for the year
2022 is not Rs. 305.71 million but Rs. 70 million. The total estimated cost of the procurement plan is
set forth by Rs. 305.71. A sum of Rs. 65.6 million was approved by the State Budget Department for
capital expenditure. And also, the State Budget Department had approved only a sum amounting to
Rs. 0.01 million for property, plants and equipment, even though the provision for such items was Rs.
2.00 million and, as such, the procurement process was set upon only for that purpose and payments
thereon were made effective. | would also like to point out that the financial progress assumed a
low value following the limitations in allocations set apart by the Department of Budget pursuant to
the instructions of the State Budget Circular No. 03 /2022 dated 26.04.2022, resulting in stoppage in
certain procurement activities and the deceleration of the previously awarded construction activities
undertaken by the contractors owing to the circumstances of unconducive economic situation including
the excessively increased prices and the scarce supply of raw materials.

(vi) The annual subscription for the software system made available to the Accounts Division of the
National Youth Corps has been recorded in the software development program vote due to an oversight.
But it has been recorded as recurrent expenditure in the preparation of financial statements and the
corrections required have been made. However, as a result of showing it under capital expenditure in
the procurement plan, the procurement and financial progress has shown 5% less in value.



(d) Accounts Receivable and Payable

(i) In the case of the overpaid amount involving the Wennappuwa Training Center, the contractor
concerned, M/s Anthony Builders, has expressed its consent in writing to pay up such overpayment to
the National Youth Corps from the amount due by the ‘Maga Neguma'’ road projects it has undertaken,
and a confirmation in that regard from the said institution has also been received by the National Youth
Corps through their letter dated 21.04.2023.

(i) Out of the receivable contract advance of Rs. 121,329,423, a sum amounting to Rs. 1,665,372 has
been recovered so far. | would like to inform you that the remainder of the advance of Rs. 119,664,051
to be further collected will be recovered on the completion of the relevant works of construction.

(iii) Out of the retainer of Rs. 4,541,454, a sum amounting to Rs. 1,525,218 has been paid and settled
up to the relevant institutions during the year 2023. The institution involving the unfinished Dambulla
Training Center whose due to be settled up retainer is worth Rs. 1,853,723 and the rest of the institutions
having involvement with their retainers as well have been notified to get their retainer dues released
out of the total sum of Rs. 3,016,236 that is to be further paid out to the contractors concerned, and |
will take action to settle up such dues during the year 2023.

(e) Advances receivable

(i) The current progress in collecting advance payments of Rs. 62,625,716 paid out in regard to
the training centers in Pelmadulla, Kotapola, Meegahakivula, Welimada and Gomarankadala whose
construction work has been stopped can be shown as follows.

* Pelmadaulla Training Centre

National Youth Corps Training Centers numbering 37 operating as at present under the Ministry
of Sports and Youth Affairs were set in motion across the island at that time, and the 2016 budget
proposals proposed to increase the number of such training centers to 100. Accordingly, the contract
for the construction work of the Palmadulla training center has been awarded to KS Construction and
Engineering (Pvt.) Limited on 12.09.2017 in accordance with the prescribed procurement procedure, for
which an advance amount of Rs. 14,798,661.58 has been paid to the contracting company concerned.
According to the preliminary geological survey work undertaken on the proposed Pelmadulla land
by the Building Research Organization, the Department Buildings which is the consultancy service
agency concerned, has informed by their letter dated 17.12.2018 that it would incur a huge expenditure
for the construction of a training center of the National Youth Corps there. It has been further informed
that this construction work cannot be undertaken within the provisions set aside for the purpose.

Therefore, this construction work has to be canceled and the advance amount of Rs. 14,798,661.58 paid
to the relevant contracting firm should be recovered from the contractor concerned. Instructions and
approval was requested by the letter dated 21.01.2019 in regard to the cancellation of these works of
construction from the Additional Secretary (Youth Affairs) of the then Ministry of National Policies,
Economic Affairs, Resettlement and Rehabilitation, Northern Province Development, Vocational
Training, Skill Development and Youth Affairs. The said Ministry letter No. MNPEA /YAD/11/06RP/04
dated 07.02.2019 has informed the Director of Youth Corps to submit the matter before the Youth Corps
Council for making a decision in that connection.



A council paper was presented in this regard, and approval was given to cancel the related works of
construction by the Youth Corps Council at its meeting held on 07.08.2019. Thereafter, the construction
of the proposed Pelmadulla training center was canceled and the relevant contracting agency was
notified by letter No. NYC /CONST/PMD/13 dated 09.10.2019 that the advance payment be settled up
forthwith.

The contract for the works of construction of the Dambulla Training Center has also been awarded
to the relevant contracting agency itself, and the agreement has been expressed through the letter
dated 23.01.2020 to have the relevant advance money collected when settling up the bills of the works
of construction involved therein. Accordingly, at the time of the settlement of bills for the works
completed in the construction of the Dambulla training center, a sum amounting to Rs. 02 million has
been recovered and necessary action has been taken to collect remainder of the money as well.

* Kotapola Training Centre

National Youth Corps Training Centers numbering 37 operating as at present under the Ministry
of Sports and Youth Affairs were set in motion across the island at that time, and the 2016 budget
proposals proposed to increase the number of such training centers to 100. Accordingly, the related
contract has been awarded to Ranveli Construction Company on 12.09.2017 for the construction of the
Kotapola training center in accordance with the prescribed procurement procedure, and an advance
payment of Rs. 17,313,228.48 has been made for that purpose.

Due to the slow and low progress of the construction work of this project, despite written and verbal
notices from time to time to complete the construction work, it was not so done. Therefore, the
relevant construction work was cancelled. A sum worth Rs. 5,327,435.87 for two bills submitted to this
Headquarters for the construction carried out by the contractor has been retained at the Headquarters.
Furthermore, an amount of Rs. 10,328,139.05 has been recovered by this Headquarters along with the
money retained for the purpose of settling up bills to the relevant contracting agency. An amount of Rs.
6,985,089.43 has yet to be collected as advance money in favour of the National Youth Corps. Although
the contractor was informed to settle the amount concerned, the related sum of money has not been
settled up until now. Therefore, the matter has been referred to the Attorney General to take legal
steps to resolve the same. Currently, further actions are being taken in this regard, and arrangements
will be made to recover the relevant advance money based on the legal instructions received in the
future.

* Welimada Training Centre

National Youth Corps Training Centers numbering 37 operating as at present under the Ministry of
Sports and Youth Affairs were set in motion across the island at that time, and the 2016 budget proposals
proposed to increase the number of such training centers to 100. Accordingly, the contract concerned
was awarded to DKS Builders on 12.09.2017 in accordance with the prescribed procurement procedure
for the construction of the Welimada Training Center and a sum amounting to Rs. 19,259,019.78 was
paid as advance money. According to the preliminary geological survey work conducted by the Building
Research Organization on the proposed land in Welimada, it has been suggested to redesign the plan
and construct only one or two buildings (with more number of floors) that can accommodate all
requirements and amenities as it will consume a considerable time for construction work, and also
due to the fact that there may involve a likelihood of changes causing unstable risk factor situations
in the construction of buildings owing to the location of the land and its topography as intimated by
the National Building Research Organization. The Department of Buildings which is the consultancy
service agency has advised by its letter No. 02-03-12-248 dated 01.08.2019 to discuss the matter
over with the contracting agency and take action to cancel the said contract offered to them on this
construction work.



Accordingly, by the letter No. NYC /CONST/MGK/09 dated 28.10.2019, the Additional Secretary (Youth
Affairs) of the then Ministry of National Policies, Economic Affairs, Resettlement and Rehabilitation,
Northern Province Development, Vocational Training, Skill Development and Youth Affairs has been
apprised of it. Furthermore, by the letter No. NYC/CONST/MGK/09 dated 25.10.2019, the relevant
contractor has also been informed of it and asked to pay up the advance amount to the National
Youth Corps immediately and settle it. Thereafter, the relevant contracting agency has submitted bills
amounting to Rs. 32,960,806.11 for their committed expenditure on the preliminary work, clearing up of
the grounds, other expenses etc. they incurred before starting the construction work and the matter
of such payment was referred to the Department of Buildings which is the consulting service agency
for their recommendations.

Thereafter, a sum amounting to Rs. 1,227,921.86 has been recommended for the relevant committed
expenditure and notified the relevant contractor of it by the letter No. 12.04.284 dated 14.12.2020 of the
Department of Buildings. It has been informed by the letter dated 01.06.2021 that the relevant contractor
does not agree to it and that it is necessary to get the services of an Adjudicator on the matter at issue.
Accordingly, upon the agreement of both parties, the services of an Adjudicator were obtained in this
regard, and according to the decision given by the Adjudicator on 28.02.2022, Rs. 1,838,630.76 should be
paid to the contractor. A request was made by the letter No. DKS/HO/MGK/ADJ/007 dated 15.03.2022
stating that the contractor does not agree with that decision and the matter concerned should go to
an arbitrator for its arbitration.

Currently, an arbitrator has been appointed for this purpose, and the legal proceedings in that connection
are being carried out. | would like to inform you that further steps will be taken to recover the advance
money paid to the relevant contracting agency, based on the decision thereon to be received in the
future.

* Meegahakivula Training Centre

National Youth Corps Training Centers numbering 37 operating as at present under the Ministry
of Sports and Youth Affairs were set in motion across the island at that time, and the 2016 budget
proposals proposed to increase the number of such training centers to 100. Accordingly, the contract
was awarded to DKS Builders on 12.09.2017 accordance with the prescribed procurement procedure
for the works of construction of the Meegahakivula Training Center and a sum amounting to Rs.
17,097,392.48 has been paid as advance money.

The land proposed for this construction work was a steep one covered with thick thatch of bushes,
and after cleaning up and preparation, it was observed that this land was a in a gravely slope terrain.
Although the buildings were planned out to be constructed accordingly, it was necessary to construct
retaining walls for the safety of the buildings. Since the construction of retaining walls will cost
a large sums of money compared to the estimate of the project, advice was sought from the then
Additional Secretary (Youth Affairs) of the Ministry of Project Management, Youth Affairs and Southern
Development in relation to this construction work through the letter No. NYC /CON/2/1 dated 30.11.2018.
Accordingly, the then Ministry of Buddhasasana and Religious Affairs through its letter No. MYAPSD
/YAD/11/02 (Vol. ii) dated 10.12.2018, had given instructions to appoint an officer and get a report from
him regarding the construction of the buildings, and to submit it to the Youth Corps Council to arrive
at a decision. For that purpose, a committee consisting of 05 officers was appointed and a report
obtained. A council paper was thereafter presented to the Youth Corps Council. Accordingly, approval
was given to cancel the related works of construction at the Youth Corps Council meeting held on
07.08.2019.



Pursuant to such decision, the then Ministry of National Policy, Economic Affairs, Resettlement and
Rehabilitation, Northern Development and Youth Affairs, by its letter No. NYC /CONST/MGK/09 dated
09.10.2019, has informed that it has decided to cancel the relevant works of construction. The contractor
has been notified accordingly by letter No. NYC /CONST/MGK/09 dated 09.10.2019 to forthwith settle
up the advance money paid to the relevant contracting agency by the National Youth Corps.

Thereafter, the relevant contracting agency has submitted bills amounting to Rs. 36,167,067.39 for their
committed expenditure on the preliminary work, clearing up of the grounds, other expenses etc. they
incurred before starting the construction work and the matter of such payment was referred to the
Department of Buildings which is the consulting service agency for their recommendations.

Thereafter, a sum amounting to Rs. 1,917,428.18 has been recommended for the relevant committed
expenditure and notified the relevant contractor of it by the letter No. 12.04.283 dated 20.09.2020 of
the Department of Buildings. It has been informed by the letter dated 06.01.2021 that the relevant
contractor does not agree to it and that it is necessary to get the services of an Adjudicator on the
matter at issue. Accordingly, upon the agreement of both parties, the services of an Adjudicator were
obtained in this regard, and according to the decision given by the Adjudicator on 28.02.2022, a sum
amounting to Rs. 3,199,531.46 should be paid to the contractor. A request was made by the letter No.
DKS /HO/MGK/ADJ/008 dated 15.03.2022 stating that the contractor does not agree with that decision
either and the matter concerned should go to an arbitrator for its arbitration. Currently, an arbitrator
has been appointed in this connection and legal proceedings thereon are currently being carried out
and | would like to inform you that further steps will be taken to recover the advance money paid to
the relevant contract agency, based on the decision to be received in the future.

* Gomarankadawala Training Centre

Prior to the construction of the National Youth Corps Training Center in Gomarankadawala, work has
been started to set up a preliminary precast building for the construction of a temporary training
center. While this construction work was going on, the construction work of the new training center
got underway at the said premises. Therefore, the construction work of the precast building has been
temporarily stopped. Furthermore, it has been identified that there are deficiencies in the preliminary
bills of quantities of this construction, and although the deficiencies were planned out to be corrected
and the construction works were scheduled to begin, financial provisions requested for the years
2020, 2021, 2023 were not materialized, making it impossible to commence the construction work due
to non-availability of provisions for the purpose. It is expected to seek provisions for this construction
for the year 2024 and if funds are provided for that year, the related construction work will be carried
out and action will be taken to recover the advance money to be collected when the settlement of the
bills takes place.

(ii) Due to the empowerment of the National Youth Corps, contracts had been awarded to the
National Equipment and Machinery Organization (NEMO) for the construction of 10 new training centers
and 21 units of building construction in the existing training centers during the years 2016 and 2014
without calling for quotations by way of a Cabinet Paper. However, due to the delay in the construction
by the relevant organization, all related works of construction were canceled in the year 2020 again by
way of a Cabinet Paper. As of now, a sum worth Rs. 71,618,995.00 out of the advance money paid to the
said organization for this works of construction have been settled up.

The advance amount of Rs. 37,615,680.00 to be settled further will be collected during final bill
settlement. In the circumstances, even though it was intimated to the Department of Buildings and the
NEMO several times in writing and verbally to submit the respective payment certificates after having



computed the final bills together with the recommendation of the Department of Buildings for the
purpose of the prompt settlement of the accounts, no response has been received so far despite the
dispatch of repeated letters on the subject continuously. However, up until now, the relevant payment
certificates have not been submitted to this Headquarters. | would like to inform you that necessary
action will be taken to have the advance money promptly settled following the submission of the
relevant documents through this Headquarters, after carrying out a thorough check on them.

(iii) Advance Register

As pointed in the audit query, the balance of the construction advance of the National Youth Corps in
the financial statements as of 31 December 2022 has been stated as Rs. 143,033,199, but it should be
corrected to indicate as Rs. 121,102,345, | would like to point out.

The National Youth Corps maintains an advance register related to each construction project in an
excel software, and the information related to the construction projects such as advance payments,
settlement, etc. can clearly be identified. Moreover, its hardcopy is given under Note No. 02 of the
working file that was made available to your division in relation to the annual accounts for the year
2022. (I submit it again herewith as Annex 01.) | also wish to point out that the softcopy thereof has also
been forwarded via the given email address for your information.

(f) Making available Interim Budgetary Provisions

(i) In pursuance of the 2022 interim budget speech for amending the Appropriation Act, No. 30 of
2021, action was taken to make provisions towards providing theoretical knowledge and training for
the male and female youth in the Sri Lankan labor market, keeping in mind the objectives of directing
such personnel to the jobs on the basis of their skills. Accordingly, in terms of Section 27.5 / 6 thereof,
a sum amounting to Rs. 200 million was allocated for training these personnel after having selected
vocational training institutes of the public sector (Youth Corps, VTA, NAITA) and the TVEC, which is
the regulatory body of the vocational training sector, whose collaboration and support is vital in this
aspect. Under this exercise, an allocation of Rs. 90 million was made available for the National Youth
Corps in September 2022.

Even by that time, the targeted trainees were being directed for the vocational training according to
the action plan drawn out by it for the aforesaid year by the National Youth Corps.

By this time, there was only a short period of 03 months available till the end of the year 2022, and
it was a difficult task to achieve the goals set during that period of time, but, even in the face of the
challenges, efforts required were made based on the job demand in the country, to direct the young
men and women having the skills for the job market, to the job-oriented courses. Accordingly, it was
decided to refer the trainees to vocational courses of training based on the following criteria:

Should be a vocational course that can be completed in a short period of time.

Should be a vocational training course advanced in effectiveness and efficiency.
Should have a higher demand in the job market.

Should be able to lead to highly paid careers.

Should be a career field with more interest and demand among young men and women.

OOo0Ooono

In the task of carrying out the procurement process approved by the Government to select as to what
should be the suitable institutes for undertaking vocational training are, the procurement procedure
involved is as follows:



Appointment of Consultative Procurement Committees (duration of about 3 days)
Drawing out specifications (duration of about 14 days)
Preparation and publication of newspaper advertisements (duration of about 5 days)
Calling for quotations commencement and conclusion (duration of about 21 days)
Appointment of bid opening committees and opening of quotation papers (about 2 days)
duration of about 2 days)

Referral to Consultative Committee and get recommendations (about 7 days) (duration of about
days)

Submission of order letter (duration of about 2 days)

Signing of Agreements (duration of about 7 days)

OOYNOsOoOooOooao

In the circumstances, since it is not practical to resort to such a long process in a short period of 90
days, necessary action has been taken to achieve these objectives through the 07 institutes selected
by our institution through the procurement process to refer the trainees for vocational training as
well as the vocational training institutes conforming to the following criteria under the approval of the
Youth Corps Council.

() Should be arecognized institution registered with the Tertiary and Vocational Education Commission
(TVEC) and an institution holding NVQ qualification.

(1) Should be an institution approved by the University Grants Commission (UGC).

(1) Should be an accredited or affiliated institute with an internationally recognized institution /
university.

(IV) Should be a registered institution of the Tertiary and Vocational Education Commission when
referring youth cadets for courses in areas where the competency standards have not been set by
the Tertiary and Vocational Education Commission, or conform to the completion of | or Il or Ill above.
The selection of the 07 institutions referred to in the related audit query in keeping with the above
criteria, has been made as follows:

Srl.

No. Institute The basis on which this institute was selected

1 RSM Heavy Vehicle and Heavy | A recognized institute registered with TVEC and also an

Machinery Training School institute issuing certificates with NVQ qualification under
criterion No. | above.

2 LA - HOTELIER A recognized institute registered with TVEC and also an
institute issuing certificates with NVQ qualification under
criterion No. | above.

3 CINEC Campus (pvt) Ltd An institute selected through the procurement procedure
in order to direct the trainees to vocational training by
our institution.

4 Wayamba Technical College An institute selected through the procurement procedure
in order to direct the trainees to vocational training by
our institution.

5 The Lanka Hospitals Co .PLC A recognized institute registered with TVEC and also an
institute issuing certificates with NVQ qualification under
criterion No. | above.

6 CISCO Network Academy An institute having accreditation or affiliation with an
internationally recognized Institute / University under
criterion No. lll above.

7 SIBA Campus An institute approved by the University Grants
Commission (UGC) under criterion No. Il above.




The Advanced Certificate Course in Information Technology and the Advanced Certificate Course in
English Language, jointly implemented by the National Youth Corps and the Sri Lanka International
Buddhist University, were being worked off by the Youth Corps as scheduled according to the action
plan of the year 2022. However, at a time of a dire situation on the backdrop the economic crisis
in the country, the resultant lack of money to pay for these courses was evident and, the interim
budget made it possible for the National Youth Corps to commit expenditure for the vocational training
courses within 03 months from the month of September 2022.

Accordingly, among the above two courses, where the trainees undergoing the subject of
Information Technology can only be directed to the vocational training to enhance their professional
skills, and as such, in a situation where the fees of this course which was started on September 05
were not possible even to pay for one month, action was taken to disburse this expenditure of Rs.
15,262,500/~ payable for the Information Technology Course through the aforesaid provisions, keeping
in mind to safeguard the interest of the trainees in order that they can carry on with their studies
uninterruptedly.

As stated above, the hotel training course, which was implemented similarly on the same line as
a job-oriented course in the field of vocational training, caused to be got underway and maintained
according to the action plan of the National Youth Corps for the year 2022, and for that course too, due
to the prevailing situation in the country, the financial allocation was not received within the proper
timelines. Furthermore, as per the institution's action plan, the job-oriented courses could not be
continued due to non-receipt of the funds requested for the regular activities. On the backdrop of such
a situation, the amount of Rs. 8,540,000/~ required for the hotel course was disbursed through the
allocated provisions through the said interim budget.

(ii) In pursuance of sections 27.1/ 27.2 of para 27 and para 28 of the 2022 interim budget speech for
amending the Appropriation Act, No. 30 of 2021, opportunity was also opened up for the employed
professionals with or without prior training in the field of networking under the discipline of information
technology for joining in these courses in order that they can uplift their professional career path
as well as get their skills of professionalism honed as a basic foundation for promotions in their
respective occupations.

Accordingly, our primary objective was to build up the leeway necessary for professionals to improve
their knowledge through updated information in tandem with the society of the present day context.
(iii) I would like to inform you that the National Youth Corps has already secured the feedback data
of 723 out of the total of 4499 trainees referred for vocational training by the help of the interim budget
and is continuing to collect the feedback information from the rest of the trainees.

The progress made in obtaining the feedback information is as follows:



Srl.|Institute Number of | Progress in  obtaining

No. Trainees |feedback information

1 RSM Heavy Vehicle and Heavy Machinery Training | 329 329

School

LA - HOTELIER 244 244

CINEC Campus (pvt) Ltd 349 Action is being taken
to obtain feedback
information.

4 Wayamba Technical College 136 136

The Lanka Hospitals Cor. PLC 14 14

6 CISCO Network Academy 1392 Action is being taken
to obtain feedback
information.

7 SIBA Campus 2035 Action is being taken
to obtain feedback
information.

4499 723

It has been disclosed during the audit that only 712 out of the aforesaid 723 trainees who have submitted
the feedback data in this manner have been referred to professional courses where the NVQ level
certificates are obtainable. It can be pointed out that these were the 11 trainees who were referred to
the Facility Management Course.

The trainees who are in pursuit of this course are given a fit and proper training in the management
of electricity, refrigeration plumbing etc. and through the successful completion of the course, the
path will be opened up for them to gain access into many a career opportunity that is spanning over a
wide range of employable positions such as electricians, / plumbing technicians / refrigeration and air
conditioning technicians / security services and maintenance services personnel.

Even though the Facility Management Course does not mean to be fetching NVQ level qualification,
there is a high demand and increased salary attached to it in the job market, and as such, action has
been taken to direct trainees for it.

In order to open up the opportunity for these trainees to gain access to national and international
jobs, Wayamba Technical College afforded the opportunity for trainees to follow the NVQ Level 03
Refrigeration and Air Conditioning Technician Course free of charge. | would like to inform you that this
NVQ Level 03 professional qualification examination is due to be held in the near future. In order to get
to know of more information, | would like to append hereto the letter sent to the Wayamba Technical
College inquiring about the current progress of the trainees who are following the respective course
as "Annex 02".

(g) Underutilization of Assets

The hotel training school has a capacity for 400 trainees. During the year 2022, trainees numbering
371 of the total capacity were recruited for the course, of which 66 were in desertion of the training in
progress. As such, a total of 305 trainees has successfully completed the course of training. Therefore,
the successful completion of the hotel school training during the year 2022 is tantamount to 76 percent
of the total capacity.

Due to the economic crisis in the country by the year 2023, the demand among the youth for such
job-oriented courses has increased. Owing to this, in addition to the 05 hotel courses that were
implemented in the year 2022, it was arranged to start the assistant bungalow keeper course as a
pilot project for the year 2023.



While managing the existing physical resources, time and knowledge and imparting training to the
trainees recruited for the Assistant Bungalow Keeper Course at the same time, the teaching activities
on the said course are also set in motion separately, getting the trainees of the Assistant Bungalow
Keeper Course together in the classrooms used for teaching the practical activities and theoretical
parts of other courses of the Hotel Training School of the National Youth Corps. (Assistant Bungalow
Keeper Course includes theory and practical activities covered in other hotel courses.)

In view of the facts as they are, the target number of trainees for the 05 basic hotel courses and the
Assistant Bungalow Keeper Course, which will be implemented as a new course from the year 2023,
is 550. Accordingly, efforts have been made use of within the resources of the existing capacity with
maximum efficiency.

(h) Cadre Administration

(i) The approved cadre of the National Youth Corps as at 31/12/2022 was 950 and the actual staff was
743. It could be pointed out that the total number of vacancies is 207.

(i) 82 Contract Staff (Including 47 Drill Instructors) and 70 Other Instructor posts (Aesthetic Instructors
- 04, Tamil Language Instructors - 26, IT Instructors - 14, English Language Instructors - 20, Drill
Discipline Instructors - 06) have been rendered vacant as of 31.12.2022, and it is not possible to make
new recruitments for these vacancies in the backdrop of the new recruitment being suspended as at
present by the Ministry of Finance in terms of the National Budget Circular No. 03 /2023 under the
heading - Control over the Public Expenditure.

Nonetheless, requests have been made to the Director General of the Department of National
Budget, the Secretary of the Ministry of Sports and Youth Affairs by the letter No. NYC /HR/1/12 dated
20.02.2023 and also to the Committee of Officers of the Cabinet of Ministers to review the recruitment
procedure of the public service by the letter dated 28.02.2023 seeking necessary approval at least
for the recruitment of essentially required vacancies to be filled or to make new recruitments to all
existing vacancies with a view to carrying on of an uninterrupted training center activities and also for
the sake of the continuance of the quality of the courses of training. Once the approval to make new
recruitments is received, action will be taken to fill these vacancies along with other vacant positions.

R.M.S.P. Ratnayake USP
Brigadier
Director, National Youth Corps.



